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CRAS & BUSINESS ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Electric Utility of Cedar Falls, lowa (the
Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Jowa} as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Compiroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
managemen!, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4, 2009, on our
consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and on our fests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the intemal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits,

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 5 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted prineipally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

éﬂ,dflczz, L7

May 4, 2009
Dubuque, lowa

PEQOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.

www.eidebailly.com

3999 Pennsylvanio Ave., Sulle 100 8 Dubugue, lowa 520022639 8 Phone 563.556.1790 ¥ Fax 563.557.7842 REQE



MUNICIPAL BELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Icwa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

The following discussion and analysis of the Municipal Electric Utility (Utility)
of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa’s financial performance provides an overview of
the Utility's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.
This information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and
the accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this section.

Financial Highlights

¢ The Utility’s net assets increased as a result of this year’s operating income
and non-operating revenues. Total assets at year-end were $154,155,141 and
total liabilities were §58,527,157 resulting in net assets of $95,627,984. In
2007, tobtal assets were $140,290,817 and total liabilities were $55,971,653
resulting in net assets of $84,319,164.

*« In 2008, operating revenues increased 13.B% to §39,350,063 from $34,598,9%82,
while operating expenses increased 22.6% to $34,956,886 from 528,522,764,

« In 2008, the Utility had operating income of $4,433,177 compared to $6,076,218
in 2007.

e The Utility delivered approximately 450,760,000 kilowatt hours (kWh} of
electricity to its retail customers in 2008 as compared to approximately
447,325,000 kwh in 2007.

« On June 10, 2008, Cedar Falls Utilities was hit by a major flood event that
destroyed or severely damaged many Utility assets. The flood destroyed the
first floor of the administrative building, building furnishings and
equipment, meters, switches, relays, tools and rendered the Streeter Station
power plant units 6 and 7 and coal handling systems incoperable and in need of
major repair. The Utilities began immediate clean up and work with the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for reconstruction, repair and
remediation of Utility facilities. The Utility continues working with FEMA
submitting costs related to recovery, repair and remediation and is still in

the process of repairing and replacing assets lost in the flood. As of
December 31, 2008, Utility administrative facilities and generation
facilities were still not completely repaired and operational. As of

December 31, 2008, the Electric Utility has spent $3,682,418 in operational
expense for flood recovery and $4,534,766 in asset repair and replacement.
The Utility has recognized $3,418,700 in Other Operating Revenues for FEMA
reimbursement expected for operational losses and $4,507,778 in Other Non-
Operating Revenues for FEMA reimbursement expected for capital losses. As of
December 31, 2008, the Utility recognized a receivable of $7,160,336 for FEMA
flood disaster reimbursement. The Utility has received $§5,428,495 in FEMA
reimbursements between January 1, 2009 and March 31, 2009 with the remainder
due upon completion of the review by the State of ITowa.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management’'s discussion and analysis (MDA) serves as an introduction to the
financial statements, and the MDA represents management’s examination and analysis
of the Utility’s £inancial condition and performance. The financial statements
report information about the Utility using f£full acerual accounting methods as
utilized by similar entities in the private sector.

- 1 -




MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, ICWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

The balance sheets include the Utility's assets and liabilities and provide
information =about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and
the obligations to creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for
evaluating the capital structure of the Utility and assessing the ligquidity and
flexibility of the Utility.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets present the results
of the Utility’'s activities ({(revenues and expenses}) over the course of the fiscal
vear and can provide information about the Utility’s recovery of its costs. Retail
rates to purchase electricity are based on rates established by the Board of
Trustees based on operating costs, debt service reguirements, and anticipated
capital needs. A Ffundamental objective of this rate model is to provide adequate
revenue to cover all expenses.

The statements of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net
changes in cash resulting from coperations, capital and related financing activities
and investing activities. This statement provides answers to such questions as
where did the cash come Ffrom, what was cash used for, and what was the change in
cash balances during the reporting period.

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures and other
informaticn that are essential to a full understanding of material data provided in
the statements. The notes present information about the Utility’s accounting
policies, significant account balances and activities, material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subseqguent events.

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and
indicators for management, monitoring, and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheet Information

2008 2007

Current assets $ 47,424,381 $ 40,016,680
Capital assets, net 102,633,879 92,127,768
Other noncurrent assets 4,096,881 8,148,371

Total assets $154,1585, 141 5140,290,817
Current liabilities 5 7,865,707 $ 5,379,075
Noncurrent liabilities 2,988,913 1,457,887
Long-term debt 47,671,537 . 49,134,691

Total liabilities 5 58,527,157 § 55,971,683
Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt $ 59,428,620 $ 85,265,234
Restricted 5,698,829 5,650,205
Unrestricted 30,500,535 23,403,725

Total net assets S 95,627,984 5 84,319,164




MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, TOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
becember 31, 2008 and 2007

Condensed Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2008 2007

Sales of electricity $33,258,403 $31,874,887

Other 6,131,660 2,724,095

Total operating revenues 39,390,063 34,598,982

Fuel and Purchased Power 12,263,862 11,238,080

Operation and maintenance 7,520,945 7,186,091

Depreciation and amortization 3,829,474 3,081,507

Services and administrative 11,342,605 7,017,088

Total operating expenses 34,956,886 28,522,764

Operating Income 4,433,177 6,076,218

Interest income 1,252,687 1,379,228

Other, net 5,622,956 (384,752}

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 6,875,643 994,476

Change in net assets 11,308,820 7,070,654

Net assets, beginning of year 84,319,164 77,248,470

Net assets, end of year $95,627,584 $B84,319,164

Financial Analysis

Current assets increased 18.6% in 2008. Customer accounts receivable, less
allowance for doubtful accounts, decreased in 2008 by 3.4%. Fuel inventory
increased $260,753, (5.9%), during 2008 due te a decrease in Streeter Station

inventories of $%28,725 over 2007 for coal and allowances offset by increases in
inventories for Walter Scott Generating Station Unit 4 {(WS4) of $62,950, for Walter
Scott Generating Station Unit 3 (WS3) of $108,793 and George Neal Unit 4 (Neal 4)
of $617,735. The Streeter Station average cost per ton increased $14.20 in 2008.
Other current assets increased $6,970,246 (534.6%) primarily due to miscellaneocus
receivable for FEMA assistance for the f£lood disaster of 2008 of 57,160,336.

Other noncurrent assets decreased 49.7% in 2008 primarily due to $3,918,860 of
long-term restricted investments from the 2007 boends issued becoming current.
Other noncurrent assets also includes the long-term note receivable £rom the
Municipal Communication Utility. The total noncurrent outstanding balance oan this
note at December 31, 2008 was $1,543,090, a decrease of 16.7% over 2007.

Current liabilities increased 46.2% in 2008 primarily as a result of an increase in
the current portion of long term debt to $1,535,000 in 2008 £rom 51,075,000 in 2007
and an increase of $1,979,956 in accounts payable due to the costs associated with
recovery from the devastating 2008 flood.

Retail kWh sales increased in 2008 by .77% (3,435,404 kWh). Retail revenue
increased 4.3% in 2008 primarily due to a 2% retail rate increase for all customers
and an increase of 28.8% ($0.0017 per kWwh} in the energy cost adjustment (ECB)
passed through to customers attributable to Streeter Station being inoperables due
to the flood and the Electric Utility purchasing more power through the market,
especially when prices were higher. Sales for resale decreased $114,659 or 3.9%
due to the Utility being unable to generate power due to the flood to sell to the
wholesale market when the price was favorable.

-3 .



MUNICIPAL, ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Anaiysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Other operating revenues increased 125.1% in 2008 primarily as a result of the
Utility recognizing §3,418,700 in FEMA grant revenue due to reimbursable
expenditures made to repair operaticnal flood damage.

Purchased Power costs increased 55.1% due to the Utility buying more electricity
from the wholesale market for native load to substitute for being unable to
generate from Streeter Station due to flood damage. Fuel costs decreased
approximately 14.3% due also to major flood damage to Streeter Station rendering
Units 6 and 7 inoperable after June 10, 2008.

Operation and maintenance expenses increased 4.7% ($334,854) in 2008. This is due
to a 2.1% (%$87,561) increase in production maintenance due to increased boiler
maintenance in the western generating units and coal facility maintenance at
Streeter, a 5% ($62,737) increase in transmission by others due to the increase in
cost related to the Hancock Wind Farm, and an increase of 10.1% ($184,556) increase
in distribution maintenance expenses.

Services and administrative expenses increased by 61.6% in 2008. The Utility began
its House Call energy efficiency program in 2008 offering customer’s rebates and no

interest loans for selected energy efficiency measures. This program increased
Customer Service and Informational expenses by 8%.0% or $39,764. Sales expense
decreased by 54.6% (550,007) due to a decrease in advertising expenses.

Administrative and general expenses increased 82.0% in 2008 primarily due to an
increase of $3,742,146 due to flood-related operational expenses and a 23.1%
($365,530) increase in employee insurance and benefits expenses. Other Taxes
increased 36.3% in 2008 due to the inclusion of Streeter Station generation im the
calculation of generation tax.

Interest Income decreased 9.2% primarily due to a reduction in investments of
$6,212,500 in order to make cash available for flood expenses and the drop in rates
of interest earned. '

Other, net increased $6,007,708 in 2008 primarily due to $4,507,778 1in FEMA grant
revenue for its expenditures for restoring and/or replacing capital assets due to
the 2008 500-year £lood event. The Utility received §1,524,581 more in Tax
fnecremental Financing (TIF) monies for certified infrastructure construction
completed in identified TIF districts from the City of Cedar Falls inm 2008 than in
2007.

Capital Assetz and Debt Administraticn

Net capital assets represent 66.6% of total assets for the Utility. Net capital
assets increased 11.4% from the prior year due to transmission system upgrades
additions and WS3 environmental and upgrade projects. Additional detail on the
change in capital assets can be found in Note 4.



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,

(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Assetrs

Capital assets: (note 4)
Capital assets, in service

$ 158,642,184

IOWA

152,173,962

Legs accumulated depreciation 66,820,398 67,026,911
Capital assets,net (note 8} 91,821,788 B5,147,051
Construction work in progress 10,812,092 6,980,715
Total capital assets,net 102,631,879 92,127,766
Noncurrent assets:
Investments - Restricted (note 2 and 3) 1,982,511 5,911,371
Note receivable (note 9) 1,543,080 1,853,090
Loans receivable 212,452 -
Total noncurrent assets 3,748,053 7,764,461
Current assets:
Cash and cash egquivalents (note 3} 14,745,857 5,914,721
Cash - Restricted (note 2 and 3} 1,304,628 2,529,812
Investments - Unrestricted (note 3} 2,691,624 8,212,500
Investments - Restricted (ncte 2 and 3} 10,36%,517 12,230,425
Receivables:
Customer accounts, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $36,150 in 2008 and $43,545 in 2007 3,625,808 3,754,720
Loans receivable 44,870 -
Interest {(note 9) 245, 646 387,878
Current installment of note receivable (note 2) 310,000 310,000
Government grants - FEMA (12) 7,160,338 -
Other 832,502 215,982
Inventories:
Fuel 4,653,214 4,392,461
Material and supplies 1,213,252 1,149,866
Prepayments and other 235,127 218,311
Total current assets 47,424,381 40,016,680
Deferred costs 348,828 381,910

Tokal assets

154,155,141

140,290,817

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



MUNICIPAT, ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Liabilities
Long-term debt, less current installments {note 5)

Current liabilities:

2008

47,871,537

2007

498,134,691

Accounts payable 3,817,866 1,837,709
Reserve for surplus declaration (note 9} 1,450,000 1,400,000
Accrued wages and vacations 550,348 538,770
Accrued interest 181,382 205,582
Other accrued expenses 291,311 322,032
Current installments of long-term debt (note 5} 1,535,000 1,075,000
Total current liabilities 7,865,707 5,379,075

Noncurrent liabilities: {note 3)
Customer advances for construction 1,312,926 440,894
Other liabilities (note 5 and 11) 1,676,987 1,016,293
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,989,913 1,457,887
Total liabilities 58,527,157 55,871,653

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 55,428,820 85,265,234
Restricted - bond indentures (note 2) 5,698,829 5,650,205
Unrestricted 30,500,533 23,403,725
Total net assets 95,627,984 84,319,164

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

§ 154,155,141

$ 140,250,817




MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Years ended December 31,

Operating revenues:
Sales of electricity:
Residential
Large industrial & commercial
Small industrial & commercial
Governmental (note 9)
Sales for resale
Interdepartmental
Total sales of electricity
Other operating revenues (note 12)
Total operating revenues

Cperating expenses:
Production and generation:
Fuel
Purchased power
Other
Transmission
Distribution
Depreciation and amortization
Customer accounts
Customer service and information expenses
Sales
Administrative and general (ncte 9}
Taxes other than income taxes
Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating revenues {expenses):
Interest income (note 39}
Net increase (decrease)
Miscellaneous revenue (expense), net (note 9)
Intergovernmental grant funds (note 12)
Interest expense on long-term debt
AFUDC (note 1}

Interest income (expense) on security deposits
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Change in net assetfs
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2008,

in the fair value of investments

and 2007

2008 2007
$ 12,720,435 12,206,314
2,026,858 2,185,569
12,456,015 11,478,625
3,078,546 2,917,804
2,789,254 2,903,913
187,295 182,662
33,258,403 31,874,887
6,131,660 2,724,095
35,390,083 34,598,582
6,375,042 7,441,986
5,888,820 3,796,054
4,192,891 4,105,430
1,316,581 1,253,844
2,011,373 1,826,817
3,829,274 3,081,507
727,683 736,423
536,583 492,432
41,565 91,568
5,049,227 4,97],900C
987,537 724,763
34,858, 886 28,522,764
4,433,177 6,076,218
1,252,687 1,379,228
36,307 289,202
2,815,037 (680,657)
4,722,787 1,216,434
(2,258,539} (1,78%,140)
311,621 578,954
(4,257) (3,545)
6,875,643 984,476
11,308,828 7,070,694
84,315,164 77,248,470
4 95,627,084 $ B4,319,164




MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa}

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received f£rom customers $ 38,359,898 $ 32,571,585

Intergovernmental grants 977,658 74,378
Cash paid to suppliers (23,386,309} (24 ,446,261)
Cash paid to employees (3,564,383) (3,223,722)
Payment in lieu of taxes to the City of Cedar Falls {1,400,000) (1,200,000)
Property tax paid (423,308) (344,591)
Net cash provided by operating activities 10,563,558 3,831,389
Cash fiows from noncapital financing activities:
Intergovernmental grants - 914,934
Interest paid on customer deposits (4,275} {2,374)
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing
activities {4,276) 912,560
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds - 17,825,000
Preminium on issuance of revenue bonds - 137,352
Discount on isgsuance of revenue bonds - (271,343}
Cost of issuance of revenue bonds - (73,559}
Principal payments on long-term debt {1,075,000) (1,460,000)
Recall of 1999 Series A and B revenue bonds (3,750,000}
Interest paid (2,183,331} (1,622,036)
Proceeds from customer advances for construction 1,001,232 188,644
Refunds of customer advances for construction {129,200} {177,900)

Acquisition, construction
and removal cost of capital assets

(14,536,324)

(12,244,443}

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 53,040 79,304
Reimbursement of utility construction costs 862,885 775,224
Intergovernmental grants 3,493 301,500
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities (16,003,205) (452,257}
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from repayment of loan by associated utility . 310,000 310,000
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities 26,806,330 35,532,292
Purchase of investment securities (15,461,374} (34,781,611}
Interest received 1,394,918 1,506,264
Net cash provided by investing activities 13,049,875 2,566,945
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7,605,982 6,818,637
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 8,444,533 1,625,896
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year {note 1) $ 16,050,485 § 8,444,533
See accompanying notes to financial statements. -8 -



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Cash Flows, Continued
Years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Operating income § 4,433,177 $ 6,076,218
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of capital assets 3,829,474 3,081,507
Qther Income {expense}, net 2,411,470 (864,988)
(Increase} decrease in accounts receivable 212,382 (769,058)
{Increage) decrease in loans receivable (257,322) -
(Increase) decrease in intergovenrmental grants (2,441,043) -
{Increase) decrease in inventories (324,139} 1,133,416
(Increase) decrease in prepayments and other {16,818} 62,757
{Increase} decrsase in other assets - 38,268
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable 1,979,857 (3,243,203)
Increase (decrease)} in reserve for surplus declaration 50,000 200,000
Increase {decrease) in accrued wages and vacation 51,578 51,664
Increase {[decrease) in other acerued expenses (25,164) 137,287
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 659,994 (72,489)
Net cash provided by operating activities % 10,563,558 5§ 3,831,38%

See accompanying notes to financial statements. -9 -
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

{a)

{c)

Organization and Basis of Accounting

The Municipal Electric Utility (Utility) of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa is a
separate and distinct city utility and is chartered under Iowa Code Section
388. The Utility is a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The
Uiility's rates are set by its governing board. The Utility £follows the
accounting practices prescribed through the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission for regulated wutilities and proprietary fund accounting for
governmental entities wunder accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

The Utility's present capacity consists of one whelly owned and three jointly
owned coal-fired plants with a combined generating capacity of 105 megawatts.
The Utility owns two combustion turbines with a generating capacity of 53
megawatts. The Utility also owns 1.5 megawatis of generating capacity in a
jointly owned wind turbine facility. The Utility owns a total of 159.5
megawatts of generxating capacity.

The Utility, as a regulated utility, follows the Code of Federal Regulations
Title 1B8-Conservation of Power and Water Resources, Chapter I-Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission, Department of Energy.

In accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB} Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
the Utility applies only Financial Accounting S$tandards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are stated at origimal cost, including an allowance for funds used
during construction. The allowance for funds used during construction {AFUDC)
represents the estimated cost of funds used for construction purposes. AFUDC
was capitalized on utility construction at a rate of 4.63% in 2008 and 2007.
Depreciation of capital assets in service 1s calculated on a composite
straight-line method at rates based on estimated service lives and salvage
values of several classes of capital assets.

The range of estimated service lives for the classes of capital assebs are as
follows: land improvements - 30 years, infrastructure - 10 to 150 years,
buiidings and improvements - 20 to 55 years, and equipment - 5 to 25 years.
The depreciation provisions were eguivalent to an overall composite rate of
2.3% of depreciable asgets for 2008 and 3.0% for 2007.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. At the
time capital assets are retired, the original cost of the asset plus cost of
removal less salvage are charged to accumulated depreciation.

Cash and Investments

Investments are stated at their fair value on the balance sheets. The Utility's
investments stated at fair value reflect quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date, for U.8. Treasury and government agency debt securities. The cost
of certificates of deposit approximates fair value.
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MUNICIPAT, ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

{c}

{d)

Cash and Investments, Continued

The Utility considers all highly liguid investments with maturity of three months
or lesg at purchase to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statements of

cash flows. Included in cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2008 was
4£500, 000 for amounts invested 1n the JIowa Public Agency Investment Trust
(IPAIT).

Inventories

Coal and oil inventories are valued at average cost. Materials and supplies are
valued at average cost. Inventories are recorded as an expenditure at the
cime individual inventory items are consumed.

(e) Operating Revenues and Expenses

(£)

(g)

Cperating revenues include revenues resulting from the sale of electricity,
service revenues and sales of capacity. Operating expenses include expenses
for power production, transmission, distribution, depreciation, customer
accounts, customer service and information, sales, and administrative and
general. Non-operating revenues and expenses Iinclude those derived from
capital and related financing activities, non-capital financing activities and
investing activities.

Revenues from the sale of electricity are based on billing rates, which are
applied to customers' consumption of electricity. The Utility records
estimated unbilled revenue, including amounts to be billed under a fuel
adjustment clause, at the end of accounting periods. Revenues earned, but not
yet billed at December 31, 2008 and 2007, were $1,400,442, and $1,244,906
respectively, and are recorded in customer accounts receivable. The Utility
uses a fuel adjustment clause whereby increases or decreases in fuel costs are
billed to customers and included in operating revenue without changing base
rates charged to its customers.

Bond Issue Costs

Unamortized bond issue costs are amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the
financial statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used for acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets and increased by unspent debt
proceeds of this capital related debt. Net assets are reported as restricted
when there are limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of government entities.

The Utility’'s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available.



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY QF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(k)

()

(3}

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of BAmerica requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

Budgetary Information

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the Board of Trustees annually adopts a

budget on the cash basis following required public notice and hearing for all
funds. The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar
statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the
cash basis budget and appropriations lapse at year end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based on the total of all four utilities

as a whole. Due to a devastating June 2008 flood that significantly damaged
much utility property and related unexpected recovery expenditures, a budget
amendment identifying these additlonal expenditures was filed with the state
of Iowa.

Reclassifications

Reclassifications of prior year’s amounts have been made for comparability.

(2) Restricted Assets

The composition of restricted assets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

2008
Current Assets - Restricted Cash Investments Total
Bond Reserve $ 218,163 § 4,352,750 4 4,570,913
Bond and Interest 256,603 296,603
Streeter Landfill 79,345 500,000 579,345
Self Insured Medical and Dental 710,517 500,000 1,210,517
Construction 4,008,767 4,008,767
Improvement and Extension 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Current Agssets - Restricted 1,304,628 10,361,517 11,666,145
Noncurrent Assets - Restricted
Construction - 1,992,511 1,992,511
Total Noncurrent Assets - Restricted - 1,992,511 1,992,511
Total restricted assets 81,304,628 512,354,028 513,658,656
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MUNECIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{3 Component Unit of the Qity of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(2) Restricted Assets, Continued

2007
Current Assets - Restricted Cash Investments Total
Bond Reserve $1,453,163 $ 3,117,750 $ 4,570,913
Bond and Interest 271,472 271,472
Streeter Landfilil 57,139 500,000 557,139
Self Insured Medical and Dental 424,928 500,000 024,928
Construction 323,11¢C 7,112,675 7,435,788
Improvement and Extension - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Total Current Assets - Restricted 2,529,812 12,230,429 14,760,241
Noncurrent Assets - Restricted
Construction - 5,911,371 5,911,371
Total Noncurrent Assets - Restricted - 5,911,371 5,911,371
Total restricted assets $2,529,812 $18,141,800 520,671,612

The monies deposited into the wvarious funds have been invested in interest-bearing
securities as required by the bond resolutions or legal reguirement. Bmounts
deposited in the bond reserve, bond interest, construction, and improvement and
extension Funds may only be used for the purpose of paying principal and interest
on the bonds when due or such other purposes as set forth in the bond resolutions
and as a result are classified as restricted. Amounts deposited in the Streeter
Landfill fund may only be used to cover costs related to the closure of the ash
landfill. Amounts deposited in the Self-Insured Medical and Dental fund may only
be used for medical and dental reserves and expenses.

(3) Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments

Cash on Hand. Cash on hand represents petty cash funds used for current operating
purposes. The carrying amount at December 31, 2008 was $345 and 2007 was $345.

Deposits. At December 31, 2008, the Utility’s carrying amount of deposits, including
$9,044,375 of certificates of deposits was $24,594,514. At December 31, 2007, the
Utility’'s carxrying amount of deposits, including $12,337,750 of certificates of
deposits and $130,669 of money market accounts, was $20,281,3%38.

Investments. The utility is authorized by statute to invest public funds not
currently needed for operating expenses in obligations of the United States
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other
evidences of deposit at federally insured depository imstitutions approved by the
Board of Trustees; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated
commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end
management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or
improvement certificates of a drainage district.



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{3} Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments, Continued

As of December 31, 2008, the Utility had the following investments and maturities.
{The Utility assumes callable bonds will not be called):

2008
Investment Type Investment Maturities {In Years)
Less than 1 1l to 3 Total
Federal Agency $4,008,767 $1,992,511 56,001,278

Obligations

As of December 31, 2007, the Utility had the following investments and maturities.
{The Utility assumes callable bonds will not be called):

2007
Investment Type Investment Maturities (In Years)
Less than 1 1 to 3 Total
Federal Agency $8,105,179 $5,911,371 $14, 016,550

Obligations

In addition, the Utility had investments in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust
which are valued at an amortized cost of $500,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1340.

Interest Rate Risk. The Utility’'s investment policy limits the investments of
operating funds {funds expected to be expended in the current budget year or
within 15 months of receipt) in instruments that mature within 397 days. Funds

not identified as operating funds may be invested in instruments with maturities
longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and
use of the vtilicy.

Credit Risk. The Utility's investment policy limits investments in commercial paper
and other corporate debt to the top two highest classifications. The Utility did
not invest in any commercial paper or other corporate debt during the year. The
Utility’s investment in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust is unrated.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Utility’s investment policy does not allow for a
prime bankers’ acceptance or commercial paper and other corporate debt balances to
be greater than ten percent of its total deposits and investments. The policy also
limits the amount that can be invested in a single issue to five percent of its
total deposits and investments. The Utility held no such investments during the
year.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in
the event of a bank failure, the Utility’s deposits may not be returned to it. The
Utility’s deposits are entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by the
State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 112C of the Code of Iowa. This
chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, the Utility will not be able to recover
rhe value of its investments or collateral securities that are i1n the possession
of an outside party. The Utility had no custodial risk with regards to
investments, since all investments were held by the Utility or its agent in the
Utility’s name.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, ITOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2067

(2) Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments, Continued

A reconciliation of the Utility’s cash and cash equivalents and investments as shown
on the balance sheets follows:

2008 2007
Cash on hand 5 345 3 345
Carrying amount of deposits 24,594,514 20,281,938
Carrying amognt gf federal 6,001,278 12,016,550
agency obligations
Carrying amount of Towa Public 500, 000 500,000
Agency Investment Trust
Total $ 31,096,136 $ 34,798,833
Current Assets
Cash and cash egquivalents $ 14,745,857 2 5,914,721
Investments 2,691,624 8,212,500
Restricted Cash 1,304,628 2,529,812
Restricted Investments 10,361,517 12,230,429
Noncurrent Investments
Restricted 1,992,511 5,911,371
Unrestricted
Total $ 31,096,137 $ 34,798,833

Oof the unrestricted cash and investments listed above, the Board of Trustees of
the Municipal Electric Utility has made reserve fund designations as follows:

2008 2007
Unrestricted Cash and Investments
Board Designated
Generation oS 691,624 s -
Western Units Landfill 328,261 -
Security Deposits 152,413 133,085
Operating 16,265,182 13,994,136
Total Cash and Investments
Unrestricted $ 17,437,480 S 14,127,221




MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, ICWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

(4) Capital Assets

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

A summary of capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

follows:
Additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfers Ending
2008 Balance In Out Balance
Capital Assets, not being
Depreciated:
Land [ 991,704 § - 5 - $ 991,704
Constructlon, 6,980,715 13,758,246 9,926,868 10,812,093
Work-in-progress
Total capital assets, 7,972,419 13,758,246 9,926,868 11,803,797
Not being depreciated
Capiktal assets,
being depreciated:
Land improvements 4,683 - - 4,683
Infrastructure 118,916,711 9,112,658 1,618,780 126,410,589
Buildings and improvements 14,586,098 444,786 1,819,305 13,211,579
BEcruipment 17,674,766 1,368,254 1,019,391 18,023,629
Total capital assets, 151,182,258 10,925,698 4,457,476 157,650,480
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation 67,026,911 4,371,824 4,578,337 66,820,398
Total capital assets, 84,155,347 6,553,874 (120, 861) 90,830,082

being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

$ 92,127,766

$ 20,312,120

5 9,806,007

$102,633,879

Additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfers Ending
2007 Ralance In out Balance
Capital Assets, not being
Depreciated:
Land 8 991,704 $ - $ - = 991,704
Construction, 25,266,384 12,791,958 31,077,627 6,980,715
Work-in-progress
Total capital assets,
Not being depreciated 26,258,088 12,791,958 31,077,627 7,972,419
Capital assets,
being depreciated:
Land improvements 4,683 - - 4,683
Infrastructure 91,240,048 28,553,728 877,083 118,916,711
Buildings and improvements 12,427,338 2,170,279 11,519 14,586,098
Equipment 17,459,262 425,979 210,475 17,674,766
Total capital assets, 121,131,329 31,149,986 1,099,057 151,182,258
being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation 64,533,344 3,660,152 1,166,585 67,026,911
Total capital assets, 56,597,985 27,489,834 (67,528) 84,155,347

being depreciated, net

Capital assets, net

$ 82,856,073

$ 40,281,792

$ 31,010,099

$ 92,127,766
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31,

{5) Noncurrent Liabilities

2008 and 2007

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as

follows:
Amounts
Bue
Beginning Ending Within
2008 Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Revenue Bonds:
Series 2003 $ 9,030,000 G - =S 255,060 s 8,775,000 g 265,000
Series 2005 23,810,000 - 615,000 23,195,000 &30, 000
Series 2007 17,825,000 - 205,000 17,620,000 640,000
Unamortized premium 256,483 - 37,856 218,827
Unamortized discount (711,782) - {108,702} {602,080}
50,209,651 - 1,003,154 49,206,537 $ 1,535,000
Current installments
of long-term debt {1,075,000) (460, 000) - (1,535,000)
Long-term debt, less
current installments 49,134,691 {460,000) 1,003,154 47,671,537
Customer advances
for construction 440,894 1,010,464 138,432 1,312,926
Other liabilities:
Landfill closure 462,798 328,261 - 791,059
Cther Deferred - B2, 885 - 82,885
Accrued severance 5%4,195 403,802 154,954 803,043
Noncurrent
liabilities 1,457,887 1,825,412 293,386 2,989,913
Total noncurrent
liabilities $50,592,578 51,365,412 51,296,540 550,661,450




MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31,

2008 and 2007

{3} Noncurrent Liabilities, Continued
Amounts
Due
Beginning Ending Within
2007 Balance aAdditions Reducticns Balance One Year
Revenue bonds:
Series 199SA $ 2,875,000 - s 2,875,000 - 5 -
Series 1999BR 1,490,000 - 1,480,000 - -
Series 2003 9,280,000 - 250,000 9,034,000 255,000
Series 2005 24,405,000 - 595,0C00 23,810,000 615,000
Series 2007 - 17,825,000 - 17,825,000 205,000
Unamortized premium 140,216 137,353 21,086 256,483
Unamortized discount (518,572) {271,343) {(78,123) {711,792) -
37,671,644 17,681,010 5,152,963 50,209,691 81,075,000
Current installments
of long-term debt (1,460,000} - (385,000} {1,075,000)
Long-term debt, less
current installments 36,211,644 17,681,010 4,767,563 49,134,691
Customer advances
for construction 430,150 256,144 245,400 440,894
Other liabilities:
Landfill closure 462,798 - - 462,798
Accrued severance 626,684 251,199 323,688 554,195
Noncurrent
liabilities 1,519,632 507,343 569,088 1,457,887
Tokal noncurrent
liabilities 537,731,276 518,198,353 $ 5,337,051 550,592,578

During 2007, the Utility issued $17,825,000 of Series 2007 revenue bonds for the
purpose of paying costs of improvements and extensions to the Utility and
environmental upgrades of generation facilities owned or co-owned by the Utility.
The bonds mature in 2026 and interest rates throughout the term of the bonds are
in a range between 4.00% and 4.375%.

During 2007, the Utility redeemed the Series 19992 and Series 1999B revenue bonds.
The original maturity date for these revenue bonds was 2012.

During 2005, the Utility issued $24,975,000 of Series 2005 revenue bonds for the
purpose of paying costs of improvements and extensions to the Utility, including
the construction of generation and related transmission facilities to serve the
Utility. The bonds mature in 2024 and interest rates throughout the term of the
bonds are in a range between 3.00% and 4.25%.

During 2003, the Utility issued $10,000,000 of Series 2003 revenue bonds for the
purpose of paying costs of improvements and extensions to the Utility, including
the construction of generation and related transmission facilities to sexrve the
Utility. The bonds mature in 2023 and interest rates throughout the term of the
bends are in a range between 3.25% and 4.50%.



MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(5) Noncurrent Liabilities, Continued

The Series 2003, 2005 and 2007 revenue bonds require annual principal payments, due
December 1, and semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1. Interest
rates throughout the term of the bonds are in a range between 3.00% and 4.50%.
The bonds are secured by the future net revenues of the Utility. Long-term debt
matures and bears interest as follows:

Series 2003 Electric Series 2005 Electric
Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds

December 1 3.25%-4.50% December 1 3.00%-4.25%

Principal Interest Principal Interest

Year Amount Amount Amount Amount
2005 4 265,000 & 357,975 s 630,000 g §33,488
2010 270,000 349,363 655,000 911,438
2011 280,000 339,913 670,000 888,512
2012 295,000 330,113 690,000 864,225
2013 855,000 319,787 1,370,000 838,350
2014-2018 3,150,000 1,260,412 7,700,000 3,343,275
2015-2023 3,960,000 542,510 9,385,000 1,657,144
2024 2,085,000 88,612
$8,775,000 $3,500,073 $23,195,00¢C 59,525,044

Series 2007 Electric
Revenue Bonds

December 1 4.,00%-4.375%

Principal Interest

Year Amount Amount
2008 8 640,000 $ 732,769
2010 67C,000 707,165
2011 700,000 680,369
2012 735,000 652,369
2013 765,000 622,969
2014-2018 4,425,000 2,624,443
201%-2023 5,575,000 1,627,843
2024-2026 4,110,000 365,750
$17,620,000 $ 8,013,681

The bond resolutions provides certain covenants relating to the collection,
segregation, and distribution of revenues from customers; places certain
restrictions on future borrowing and leasing or disposition of assets; and
requires that minimum insurance coverage be maintained.



MUNICIPAL BLECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, ICWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(5) Noncurrent Liabilities, Continued

Iowa Administrative Code rule 567-103.2(13) reguires the Utility to place a final

cover on its ash landfill site for its Streeter Station Generating Facility when
it is closed and thereupon to have in place surveying wmonuments and an approved
groundwater monitoring system. Iowa Administrative Code rule 567-103.2(14)
requires the Ukility to maintain the f£inal cover, monitor ground water, and file
reports with the JIowa Department of Natural Resources for thirty years following
closure of the site. Although closure and post closure costs are paid only near
or after the date that the landfill is closed, the ytility reports a portion of
these closure and post cleosure costs as an operating expense in each period based
on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $462,798 reported as
langfill closure and post closure care liablility at December 31, 2008, represents
the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 100% of the estimated
capacity of the landfill. This is based on what it would cost to perform all
closure and post closure care in 2008. The Utility expects to close the landfill
during 2009. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology,

or changes in regulatioms. In 2008 the Utility created a Landfill Closure
liability of %271,475 for its ownership share of Walter S8Scott - Unit 3, and
556,787 for its ownership share of Neal - Unit 4 generating units. The Walter

Scott - Unit 3 dry ash landfill is expected to be closed December 1, 2010 and its
wet ash landfill is expected to be closed December 1, 2024. The Neal - Unit 4
land £ill is expected to be closed December 1, 2012,

(6) Pension and Retirement Benefits

The Utility contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS)}, a

In

cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
State of TIowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits, which are
established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. TIPERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes {financial statements and
required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing IPERS,
P.0. Box 9117, Des Mecines, Iowa 50306-9117.

Plan members were reguired to contribute 3.30% of their amnual covered salary and
the Utility is required to contribute 6.05% of amnual covered payroll through June
30, 2008. Beginning July 1, 2008 plan members are required to contribute 4.10% of
their annual covered salary and the Utility is required tec contribute 6.35% of
annual covered payroll. Contribution reguirements are established by State
statute. The Utility’s contributions for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007,
and 2008 were $388,089; 5341,288; and 3301,172; respectively, equal to the
required contributions for each year.

accordance with the Code of JIowa Section 5097, the Utility allows retiring
employees to continue health insurance coverage on the self-funded health
insurance plan at the employees’ own cost until eligible for Medicare benefits.
Qualifying employees with 20 years of Utility service, BB IPERS points and having
reached 55 years of age may convert their accrued sick leave value into paid
health insurance premiums upon retirement. This benefit will be phased ocut by
June 30, 2010. In 2008 the benefit was reduced to 75% of accrued sick leave and
in 2009 to June 30, 2010 it will be reduced to 50% and =zero thereafter. The
Utility recognized liability of $130,134 and $65,221; respectively, for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

{7} Income Tax Status

The Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes under the applicable tax

codes.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Jointly-Owned Capital Assets

The Utility's share of jointly owned electric facilities at Decembexr 31, 2008 and

2007 is reflected in the following table. These facilities provide approximately
27% of the Utility's total generating capacity. The Utility is reguired to
provide financing for its share of the facilities. The Utility's share of
expenses associated with these facilities is included with the appropriate
operating expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
aggets.

Capital Assets, Net

Percentage Capacity
Facility Ownership MW 2008 2007
Walter Scott - Unit 3 3.10% 20.90 ¢ 5,455,474  $ 5,131,190
Walter Scott - Unit 4 2.02% 15.97 27,210,342 27,143,656
Neal - Unit 4 2.50% 15.60 2,405,647 2,464,297
Towa Distributed Wind 65.80% 1.50 745,513 788,614

Generation Project

Related Party Transactions

The Utility makes payments in lieu of taxes upon approval by the Board of Trustees to

In

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Expenses for 2008 and 2007 were $1,450,000 and
$1,400,000, respectively, which were recorded in administrative and general
expenses. Subsequent o December 31, 2008, the Utility’s Board of Trustees
approved a payment of $1,450,000 related to payments in lieu of taxes for 2008.

addition, the Utility provides electric service to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa.
Operating revenues from the service provided amounted to $553,389 and $519,974 in
2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Electric Utility has extended a loan to the Municipal Communications Utility of

the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa (Communications Utility), with an outstanding
baiance of 51,853,090 and $2,163,090 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Interest accrues on the loan at 3.10% and is paid semi-annually
during January and July. Semi-annual principal payments continue through 2016.
Accrued interest receivable was $31,421 and $36,351 at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. Interest income for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was
564,622 and $74,225 respectively.

For the vears ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Utility earned a management fee

of $6%,863 from the Communications Utility for administration, finance, human
resources and legal services, which is recorded in miscellaneous nonoperating
revenue.

{10) Risk Management

the Cedar Falls Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities

{Utilities) are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees;
and natural disasters. The Utilities purchase commercial insurance for claims
related to these risks. The risk management account provides employee health
insurance coverage for the Utilities’ employees and participating retirees. The
Utilities self-fund the first 560,000 of claims per individual and have insurance
for claime above this amount. In addition, the Utilities have aggregate stop loss
coverage for the 2008 plan year for aggregate claims exceeding $2.1 million.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{10) Risk Management, Continued

Liabilities of the risk management account are reported when it is probable that a
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reascnably estimated.
Liabilities include an estimated amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported (IBNR) which represent estimates of the eventual loss on claims arising
prior to year-end. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past
two years are as follaows:

2008 2007
Unpaid claims and IBNR, beginning of year $ 185,000 $ 300,000
Current year costs including IBNR 1,544,287 1,424,435
Claims paid (1,435,687) (2,539,435}
Unpaid claims and IBNR, end of year § 293,600 § 185,000

The Utility has recorded $179,096 and $107,300 in accounts payakble for its share of
these unpaid claims at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Utilities are a wmember of the TIowa Municipalities Workers' Compensation
Association (the Association), which was established to provide members a group
seif-insurance program for their workers’ compensation liabilities. Approximately
470 governmental entities participate in the Association. A board of trustees
consisting of seven members is elected by the members participating in the
Association to manage and conduct the business and affairs of the Association.

The following table sets forth summarized financial data of the Associaticn as of and
for its year ended June 30, 2008.

Cash and cash eqguivalents and investments 541,832,212
Receivables 1,587,842
Other assets 555,181

Total assets 543,975,235
Total liabilities 520,132,854
Total equity 23,842,381

Total liabilities and equity $43,975,235
Total revenues $ 8,727,540
Total expenses 3,056,377

Distribution to members -

Net increase in eguity $ 5{671,163

There have been no instances where the amount of settlement has exceeded available
coverage in the past three vyears. There has been no significant reduction in
insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, TOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar ¥Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
bPecember 31, 2008 and 2007

{11) Other Post Employment Benefits {OPEB}

Plan Description

The Cedar Falls Utilities administers a single-employer defined benefit medical
health care plan (The Plan) for all four utilities. The plan provides seif-insured
medical, vision, and prescription drug coverage to all active and retired
employees and their eligible dependents. Eligible retirees recelve health care
coverage through the s=ame plans that are available for active employees. To be
eligible for these benefits employees at their retirement date must be a minimum
of 55 years old, have been employed for the preceding four years, and be enrolled
in the plan. Plan contributions are required from retirees based on an amount
equal to the full cost of active members. These medical benefits terminate upon
attaining Medicare eligibility. In addition, the Plan provides a $5,000 in life
insurance benefits to all retirees who elect this coverage and agree to pay a
contribution for this coverage.

Funding Policy

The Utility, with assistance from their third-party administrators, establishes and
amends contribution requirements for both active and retiree wmembers on an annual
basis. The current funding policy is to pay health claims as they occur and the
required contribution is based on pay-as-you-go financing. For the vear ending
December 31, 2008, the Utility econtributed §$140,%36 and retirees receiving
benefits contributed $153,307 through their regquired contributions.

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligations

The Plan’s annual OPEB expense is calculated based on the annual regquired
contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of General Accounting Standards Board {GASB) Statement No 45.
This standard was implemented in 2008. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (oxr funding excess) over a period
not to exceed thirty vears. The Ffollowing schedule shows the components of the
armual OPEBR expense for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the net OPEB obligation:

2008

Annual reguired contribution $ 299,000
Interest on Net OPEBR Cbligation -
Adjustment to annual required

contribution 35,572
Annual OPEB expense 289,428
Contributions and payments made {12,371)
Increase in net OPEB obligation § 301,799
Net OPEB obligation, December 31, 2007 -
Net OPEB obligation, December 31, 2008 $ 301,799

The Electric Utility’'s share of the December 31, 2008 Net OPEB obligation is
$185,596.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY QF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{11} other Post Employment Benefits ({(OPEB), Continued

The Utility’'s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and net OPEB obligation for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Percentage
0f Annual
Annual OPER Cost Net OPER
Fiscal Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
December 31, 2008 $289,428 ~4.27% £301,799

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of January 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial wvaluation date, the actuarial
accrued liability {(BAAL) and unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UaAL) for
benefits was $3,436,000. The Plan is unfunded since there are no assets and
retiree benefits are paid annually on a cash basis. Because The Plan is unfunded,
the AAL and UAAL are equal. The covered payroll is the yearly payroll of actives
covered by the plan and was $11,162,424, in 2008 and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 30.8%.

Actuarial wvaluations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the wvalue of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples incliude assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the anmual reguired contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. There are no plans to fund The Plan at this time.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members} and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan members to
that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial wvalue of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial valuation date: January 1, 2007
Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit
Amortization methed: Level Percentage Of Projected Payroll
Remaining amortization period: 30 years
Actuarial assumptilons:
Discount Rate 5.0%
Healthcare Trend Rate 11.0% declining .5% annually to 6%
Projected Salary Increases 4.0%
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{12} Flood Event

On June 10, 2008, Cedar Falls Utilities was hit by a major flood event that destroyed
or severely damaged many Utility assets. The f£lood destroyved the first floor of
the administrative building, building furnishings and equipment, meters, switches,
relays, tools and rendered the Streeter Station power plant units 6 and 7 and coal
handling systems inoperable and in need of wajor repair. The Utilities began
immediate clean up and work with the Federal Emergency Management Agency {FEMA)
for reconstruction, repair and remediation of Utility facilities. The Utility
continues working with FEMA submitting costs related to recovery, repair and
remediation and is still in the process of repairing and replacing assets lost in
the £flood. As of December 31, 2008, Utility administrative facilities and
generation facilities were still not completely repaired and operational. As of
December 31, 2008, the Electric Utility has spent $3,682,418 in operational
expense for flood recovery and $4,534,766 in asset repair and replacement. The
Utility has recognized $3,418,700 din Other Operating Revenues for FEMA
reimbursement expected for operational losses and $4,507,778 in Other Non-
Operating Revenues for FEMA reimbursement expected for capital losses. Ay of
December 31, 2008, the Utility recognized a receivable of 57,160,336 for FEMA
flood disaster reimbursement. The Utility has received §5,428,495 in FEMA
reimbursements between January 1, 200% and March 31, 2009 with the remainder due
upon completion of the review by the State of Iowa.

{13} Commitments and Contingencies

The Utility jointly owns the Walter Scott Energy Center Unit Numbers 3 and 4, and the
George Neal Generating Station Unit No 4 (see note 8). Ceoal procurements are made
by the agent for the joint owners on a system portfolio basis, which are a mix of
1, 2, and 3-year purchases to minimize risk. The Utility is obligated to purchase
at least the annual amount of coal to operate the Utility’s share at minimum load.
The Utility’s share of coal purchases for the years 2008 and 2007 were $1,371,203
and $3,443,301, respectively.

The Utility is a party to various lawsuits arising in the normal course of business.
The Utility believes the resolutions will not have a material adverse impact on
its financial operations and net assets.

In 2007, the Utility contracted with Miron Construction Co. Ine (Miron) as its
General Contractor, to constructed a baghouse for Streeter Station Generating Unit
#6 (Unit 6} Lo capture particulate matter from this unit. The baghouse
construction was completed and Unit #6 was returned to operation in June 2007,
however, Unit #6 has only been able run at 8-12MW and has not attained its full
capacity of 16.5MW. When exceeding the 8-12 MW range, the bags in the baghouse
become clogged, and the normal cleaning process is unable to keep up with the
emission particles flowing through the baghouse and the Unit is shut down. The
Utility continued to work with Miron to determine the root cause of the problem
and identify a solution up until the time of the Flood which took the Unit off-
line for repairs.

Unit #6 1s scheduled back in service in April 2009 when all flood-related repairs are
scheduled to be completed. Once back in service, performance tests will be made
to assess the baghouse capabilities and possible solutions. Per the contract for
the baghouse construction, a third party testing firm will be hired by Miron to
conduct these performance tests and after 30 days or more of continuous operation
ensure the baghouse meets the original contract specifications. Independently,
the Utility has hired a consultant with baghouse expertise to witness the
performance tests and help identify any problems with the baghouse design that is
preventing Unit #6 from achieving full capacity and recommend an appropriate
solution.
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MUNICIPAL ELECTRIC UTILITY OF THE CITY COF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(13) Commitments and Contingencies, Continued

Since the baghouse has not performed as designed and therefore has not achieved

As

substantial completion, the Utility has withheld progress payments to Miron.
Miron has disputed this position and has asked for mediation proceedings which are
scheduled for May 15, 2009.

of December 31, 2008, the Utility was involved in several construction projects
with an estimated cost to complete of approximately $5,368,000 dincluding
approximately $4,347,000 in flood-related capital projects. Additionally, the
Walter Scott Energy Center Unit 3 has initiated a multi-year environmental project
in 2007 with a remaining estimated cost to complete of approximately $5,444,000.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric Utility

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric Utility of Cedar
Falls, Jowa (the Utility), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, and have issued our
report thereon dated May 4, 2009. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statemnents, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the Utility’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Utility’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s
internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. ’

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility’s financial staternents are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Commments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility’s operations for the year ended
December 31, 2008, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our
audit of the financial statements of the Utility and are reported in Part II of the Schedule of Findings,
which has been submitted under separate cover. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Utility in a separate letter dated May 4,
2009.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and customers of the Utility and other parties to whom the Utility may report. This report is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of the
Utility during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the above
matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

é"/dﬁulg L7

Dubuque, lowa
May 4, 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Gas Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Gas Utility of Cedar Falls, Iowa (the
Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4, 2009, on our
consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 4 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

@M Le7”

May 4, 2009
Dubuque, lowa
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MUNICIPAL Gas UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

The following discussion and analysis of the Municipal Gas Utility (Utility) of the
City of Cedar Falls, Iowa's financial performance provides an overview of the
Utility’s financial activities for the vears ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.
This information shcould be read in conjunction with the financial statements and
the accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e The Utility’'s net assets increased as a result of operating iacome and non-
operating revemues in 2008 and 200%. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, total assebs
were $23,023,361 and $20,774,671, <respectively, and total liabilities were
$3,404,5678 and $3,473,006, respectively, resulting in net assets of §$19,618,683 and
$17,301,665, respectively.

e In 2008 operating revenues increased over 2007 by 18.5% to $20,739,508 while
operating expenses increased over 2007 by 9.6% to $19,065,793. 1In 2007 cperating
revenues were $17,507,949 while operating expenses were $17,388,757.

. In 2008, the Utility had net operating income of $1,673,715 compared to net
operating income of $109,19%1 in 2007.

s On June 10, 2008, Cedar Falls Utilities was hit by a major flood event that
destroyed or severely damaged many Utility assets. The flood destroyed the first
floor of the administrative building, office furnishings and eguipment, meters,

requlators, and tools. The Utilities began immediate clean up and work with the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMAR} for recomstruction, repair and
remediaticon of Utility facilities. The Utlility continues working with FEMA

submitting costs related to recovery, repair and remediation and is still in the
process of repairing and replacing assets lost in the flood. As cf December 31,
2008, Utility administrative facilities and generation facilities were still not
completely repaired and cperatiomal. As of December 31, 2008, the Gas Utility has
spent $395,791 in operational expense for flocd recovery and $616,207 in asset
repair and replacement. The Utility has recognized $277,309 in Other Operating
Revenues Ffor FEMA reimbursement expected for operational losses and $505,827 in
Other Non-Operating Revenues for FEMA reimbursement expected for capital losses.
As of December 31, 2008, the Utility recognized a receivable of $569,508 for FEMA
flood disaster reimbursement. The Utility has received $316,763 in FEMA
reimbursements between January 1, 2009 and March 31, 2005 with the remainder due
upon completion of the review by the State of Iowa.

Ovarview of the Financial Statements

Management’s discussion and analysis (MDA) serves as an introduction to the
financial statements, and the MDA represents management’s examination and analysis
of the Utility's financial condition and performance. The financial statements
report information about the Utility wusing full accrual accounting methods as
utilized by similar entities in the private sector.

The balance sheets include the Utility’'s assets and liabilities and provide
information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and
the obligationsz to creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for
evaluating the capital structure of the Utility and assessing the liguidity and
flexibility of the Utility.



MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets present the results
of the Utility’'s activities (revenues and expenses) over the course of the fiscal
year and can provide information about the Utility’s recovery of its costs. Retail
sales rates are based on rates establiished by the Board of Trustees based on
operating costs, debt service reguirements, and anticipated capital needs. A
fundamental objective of this rate medel is to provide adequate revenue to cover
all expenses.

The statements of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net
changes in cash resulting from operations, capital and related financing activities
and investing activities. This statement provides answers to such questions as
where did the cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in
cash balances during the reporting period.

The notes to the financial statements provide regquired disclosures and other
information that is essential to a full understanding of data provided in the
statements. The notes present information about the Utility’s accounting policies,
significant account balances and activities, material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key fipancial data and
indicators for management, wmonitoring and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheet Information

2008 2007
Current assets $11,163,943 $ 9,315,035
Capital assets, net 11,747,450 11,434,658
Other noncurrent assets 111,968 24,978
Total assets 823,023,361 520,774,671
Current liabilities $ 2,996,533 S 3,114,049
Noncurrent liabilities 408,145 358,957
Long-term debt - -
Total liabilities $ 3,404,678 § 3,473,006

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

$11,747,450

7,871,233 .

511,034,983
203,000
6,063,682

519,618,683

$17,301, 665




MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF TEE CITY QOF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Condensed Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2008 2007

Sales of gas $20,415,953 $17,471,805
Other 323,855 36,144
Total operating revenues 20,739,508 17,507,949
Katural gas purchased for resale 14,853,389 13,501,541
Operation and maintenance 1,059,681 1,150,142
Depreciation 692,695 663,899
Service and administrative 2,460,028 2,083,175
Total operating expenses 19,065,793 17,398,757
Operating Income 1,673,718 108,152
Interest income 191,345 320,568
Other, net 451,958 303,514
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 643,303 624,083
Change in net assets 2,317,018 733,275

Net assets, beginning of year 17,301,665 16,568,350
Net assets, end of year 519,618,683 $17,301,665

Financial Analysis

Current assets increased 19.8% in 2008 primarily due to an increase in other
accounts receivable of $569,9%908 resulting from FEMA grant reimbursement monles to
be received for damage and resulting repairs from a major 500-year flood event
suffered by the Utility in the June 2008.

The Utility no longer carries any debt as the 2005 Gas Refunding Capital Loan Notes
debt was paid in Full during 2008.

Gas revenues increased 18.5% in 2008 because of a 13.0% increase in 2008 usage and
an increase in Purchase Gas Adjustment (PGA) revenues. The average PGA increased
in 2008 to $8.74 per MCF from $7.19% per MCF during 2007, an average increase of
$1.55 per MCF.

Natural gas purchased for resale expense increased 10.0% in 2008 primarily due to
the increase in retail gas usage of 13.0% and the increase in wholesale gas prices
as reflected in the $1.55% per MCF increase in the average PGA from 2007 to 2008.
The amount of the change in fuel cost to be recovered from December 31, 2007 to
December 31, 2008 is a decrease in expense of $11,470 from 2007 to 2008.

Operation and maintenance expenses decreased 7.9% in 2008. This increase 1is
attributable to an overall decrease in maintenance costs.

Service and Administrative expenses increased by 18.1% from 2007 primarily due to
flood expenses related to operations of $395,791 for 2008. Also, the Utility began
its Housme Call energy efficiency program in 2008 coffering customer’s rebates and
incentives for selected energy efficiency measures. This program increased
Customer Service and Informational expenses by 139.1% or $81,0385.



MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDRDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Interest income decreased 40.3% in 2008 primarily due to a reduction in investments
of $1,335,000 in order to make cash available for flood expenses and the drop in
rates of interest earned.

Other, net increased in 2008 by 48.9% primarily due to the Utility recognizing
$505,827 in FEMA grant revenue for its expenditures for restoring and/or replacing
capital assets due to the 2008 500-year flood event.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Net capital assets represent 51.0% of total assets for the Utility. Net capital
assets increased 2.7% from the prior year primarily due to wmore capital projects

being required during 2008. Additional detail om the change in capital assets can
be found in Note 4.

There is no remaining long term debt as the Utility paid off the 2005 Gas Refunding
Capital Loan Notes in 2008.



MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

December 31,

Asgets

Capital assets: (note 4}
Capital assets, in service
Less accumulated depreciation

Construction work in progress
Net capital assets

Noncurrent assets:
Leans receivable

Total noncurrent assets

Current assets:

Cash and cagh egquivalents (note 2)

Cash - Restricted (note 2 and 3}
Investments (note 3}
Receivables:

Customer accounts, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $ 35,150 in 2008 and $38,023 i 2007

Loans receivable
Intersst
Trade

Government grants - FEMA {note 11)

Other
Inventories:
Material and supplies
Prepayments and other
Total current assets

Deferred costs

Total assetis

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Balance Sheets
2008 and 2007

§ 18,844,585

$ 19,176,829

7,610,731 7,758,286
11,233,824 11,378,543
513,626 56,115
11,747,450 11,434,658
111,868 22,504
111,968 22,504
6,104,585 3,540,017
354,262 471,150
554,000 1,885,000
3,330,419 3,082,883
51,284 56,386
6,866 46,123
3,924 8,960
565,508 -
35,866 61,827
123,645 133,2%6
33,104 29,573
11,163,943 9,315,035
- 2,474

$ 23,023,361

$ 20,774,871




MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Liabilities 2008 2007
Long-term debt, less current installments (note 5) g - $ -
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,620,013 2,364,392
Accrued wages and vacations 205,132 203,555
Accrued interest - 6,000
Other accrued expenses 171,388 140,427
Current installments of long-term debt ({note 5} - 399,675
Total curreat liabilities 2,996,533 3,114,049

Nencurrent liabilities: {(note 5}

Customer advances for construction 175,641 178,551
Other liabhilities (note 5 and 18) 232,504 180,406
Total noncurrent liabilities 408, 145 358,957
Total liabilities 3,404,678 3,473,008

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 11,747,450 11,034,983
Restricted - bond indentures (note 2) - 203,000
Unrestrictad 7,871,233 6,063,682
Total net asseis 19,518,683 17,301,665
Total liabilities and net assets $ 23,023,361 520,774,671

See accompanying notes te financial statements. -



MUNTCIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Operating revenues:
Sales of gas:
Residential
Industrial
Commercial
Governmental (note B8)
Interdepartmental
Total sales of gas
Cther operating revenues
Total operabting revemues

Operating expenses:
Production:
Natural gas purchased for resale
Other
Distribution
Depreciation
Customer accounts
Customer sexrvice and information expenses
Saies
Administrative and general (note 8)
Taxes other than income taxes
Total operating expenses

Operating income
Non-operating revenues (expenses):

Interest income
Net increase (decrease) in the fair wvalue of investments
Miscellaneous revenue (expense), net (note 8)
Intergovernmental grant funds {note 1il)
Interest expense on long-term debt

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Change in net asgsets

Nebt agsets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

See accompanying nctes to financial statemenis.

2008 2007
$ 11,262,766 $ 9,901,492
2,515,372 2,133,406
5,211,604 4,122,238
1,295,445 1,208,376
130,766 106,293
20,415,953 17,471,805
323,555 36,144
20,739,508 17,507,949
14,853,389 13,501,541
2,000 10,274
1,057,681 1,139,868
692,695 663,899
421,629 431,710
139,287 58,248
10,850 26,127
1,752,217 1,435,321
135, 945 131,769
19,065,793 17,398,757
1,673,715 109,192
191,345 320,569
- 3,600
(47,751) 219,350
505,827 103,500
(6,118) (22,936)
643,303 624,083
2,317,018 733,275
17,301,665 16,568,390

$ 19,618,683

$ 17,301,665




MUNICIPAIL: GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 2008 and 2007

Cash received from customers

Intergovernmental grants

Cash paid to suppliers

Cash paid to employees

Payment in lieu of taxes to the City of Cedar Falls

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and yelated financing activities:

Principal payments on lorg-term debt
Interest paid
Proceeds from customer advances for construction
Refunds of customer advances for construction
Acguisition, construction

and removal cost of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Reimbursement of utility construction costs
Intergovernmental grants

Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities
Purchase of investment securities
interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash esquivalents, end of year (note 1)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$§ 19,543,128
277,308
(16,896,510)

$ 17,348,878

{15,357,464)

{1,137,873) {(1,130,623)
- {200,000)
1,786,054 620,789
{400,000} (595,000G)
{12,000} (28,860)
a1z,700 53,070
(34,325} {45,480)
{1,098,958) (771,218}
- 2,257

102,819 116,688
505,827 103,500
(303,977) (1,164,841)
3,765,000 2,385,000
{2,430,000) (2,385,000}
230,603 332,622
1,565,603 332,622
2,447,680 (211,430)
4,011,167 4,222,597

] 6,458,847

$§ 4,011,167




MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Cash Flows, Continued
Years ended December 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
cperating activities
COperating income $ 1,673,715 § 109,192
Rdjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation of capital assets 692,695 663,899
Other Income (expense}, net {55,664} 207,655
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable A (216,82%8) {389,374}
(Increase) decrease in loang receivable {84,352) -
{Increase) decrease in intergovenrmental grants (569,908) -
(Increase} decrease in inventory 9,671 1,351
{increase) decrease in prepayments and other (3,531) {6,942}
Increase (decrease} in accounts payable 255,621 163,002
Increase {(decrease} in reserve for surplus declaration - (200,000}
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and vacation 1,877 30,185
Increase {(decrease) in accrued expenses 30,961 95,705
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 52,0938 (53,894)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,786,054 $ 620,789

See accempanying notes to financial statements. -9 -



MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY QF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

MNotes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{1} Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

{c)

Organization and Basis of Accounting

The Municipal Gas Utility (Utility) of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is a
separate and distinct city utility and is chartered under Iowa Code Section
388. ‘The Utility is a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. The
Utility's rates are set by its governing board. The Utility follows the
accounting practices prescribed through the Federal Epergy Regulatory
commission for regulated utilities and proprietary fund accounting for
governmental entities under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

the Utility, as a regulated utility, £follows the Code of Federal Regulations
Title 18 - Conservation of Power and Water Resources, Chapter I - Federal
fnergy Regulatory Commissicn, Department of Energy.

In accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASR) Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
the Utility applies only Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are stated at original cost, including an allowance for funds used
during construction. The allowance for funds used during construction {(AFUDC)
represents the estimated cost of funds used for construction purposes. AFUDC
was capitalized on utility construction at a rate of 5.74% in 2008 and 2007.
Depreciation of capital assets in service is calculated on a composite
straight-line method at rates based on estimated services and salvage values
of several classes of capital assets. The range of estimated service lives for
the classes of capital assets are as follows: infrastructure - 15 to 65 years,
buildings and improvements - 30 tc 45 years, and equipment - 20 to 85 years.
The depreciation provisions were equivalent to an overall composite rate of
3.6% of depreciable assets for 2008 and 2007.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as lncurred. At the
time capital assets are retired, the original cost of the asset plus cost of
removal less salvage are charged to accumulated depreciation.

Cash and Investments

Investments are stated at their fair value on the balance sheets. The Utility's
investments stated at fair value reflect quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date, for U.S. Treasury and government agency debt securities. The cost
of certificates of deposit approximates fair value.

The Utility considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three
months or less when purchased to be cash egqguivalents for purposes of the
statement of cash flows. Included in cash and cash equivalents at December
31, 2008 and 2007 was $500,000, respectively for amounts invested in the Iowa
Publie Agency Investment Trust (IPAIT).

Inventories

Materials and supplies are valued at average cost. Inventories are recorvded as
an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed.

- 10 -
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

(e}

(£)

(h)

(i)

Natural Gas Commodity Purchases

The Utility has entered into agreements with natural gas suppliers to purchase
gas for resale to our customers. Purchases under these contracts are
considered “normal purchases and sales” wunder Statements of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133 and are not marked-to-market.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues include revenues resulting from the sale of gas and service
revenues. Operating expenses include expenses for natural gas purchases,
distribution, depreciation, customer accounts, customer service and
information, sales, and administrative and general. Nonoperating revenues and
expenses include those derived from capital and related financing activities,
noncaptial financing activities, and investing activities.

Revenues from the sale of gas are based on billing rates, which are applied to
customers' consumption of gas. The Utility records estimated unbilled
revenue, including amountsz to be billed under a purchased gas adjustment
clause, at the end of accounting periods. Revenues earned, buf not yet billed
at December 31, 2008 and 2007 were $%1,863,177 and $1,856,176, respectively,
and are recorded in customer accounts receivable. The Utility uses a
purchased gas adjustment clause whereby increases and decreases in fuel costs
are billed to customers and included in operating revenue without changing
base rates charged to its customers.

Debt Discount and Bond Issue Costs

Unamortized debt discount and bond issue costs are amortized over the life of the
bonds using the effective interest methed.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the
financial statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used £for acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
rastricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through extermal
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
government entities.

The Utility’'s policy ig te first apply restricted resources when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available.

Reclassifications

Reclassifications of prior year’'s amounts have been made for comparability.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principals generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptlons that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

- 11 -




MUNICIPAL, GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

{kx} Budgetary Information

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the Board of Trustees annually adopts a
budget on the cash basis following required public notice and hearing for alil
funds. The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar
statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the
cash basis budget and appropriations lapse at year end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based on the total of all four utilities
ags a whole. Due to a devastating June 2008 flood that significantly damaged
much utility property and related unexpected recovery expenditures, a budget
amendment identifying these additional expenditures was filed with the state
of Towa.

{2} Restricted Assets

The composition of restricted assets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

2008
Current Assets - Restricted Cash Investments Total
S5elf Insured Medical and Dental $ 354,262 - § 354,262
Total Current Assets - Restricted 354,262 - 354,262
Total restricted assets $ 354,262 - S 354,262
2007
Current Assets - Restricted Cash Investments Total
Bond and Interest $ 209,000 - $ 203,000
Self Insured Medical and Dental 262,150 - 262,150
Total Current Assets - Restricted 471,150 - 471,150
Total restricted assets 5 471,150 - $ 471,150

The monies deposited inte the various funds have been invested in interest-bearing
gecurities as required by the bond resolutions.  Amounts deposited in the
above funds may only be used for the purpose of paying principal and interest
on the bonds when due or such other purposes as set forth in the bond
resolutions and as a result are classified as restricted. BAmounts deposited
in the self-Insured Medical and Dental fund may only be used for medical and
dental reserves and expenses.

{(3) Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments

Cash on BEand. Cash on hand represents petty cash funds used for current operating
purposes. The carrying amount at December 31, 2008 and 2007 was 3100,
respectively.

Deposits. At December 31, 2008, the Utility’'s carrying amount of deposits, including
$550,000 of certificates of deposits was $6,508,747. At December 31, 2007, the
Utility's carrying amount of deposits, including $1,885,000 of certificates of
deposits, was $5,396,0687.

- 12 -




MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{aA Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa}

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{3) Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments, Continued

Investments. The utiiity is authorized by statute to invest public funds not
currently needed for operating expenses in obligations of the United States
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other
evidences of deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the
Board of Trustees; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated
commercial paper;. perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end
management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or
improvement certificates of a drainage district.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Utility had no Federal Agency Obligation
investments or maturities.

In addition, the Utility had investments in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust
which are valued at an amortized cost of $500,00C at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1540.

Interest Rate Risk. The Utility's investment policy limits the investments of
operating funds (funds expected to be expended in the current budget year or
within 15 months of receipt)} in instruments that mature within 387 days. Funds

not identified as operating funds may be invested in instruments with maturities
longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and
use of the Utility.

Credit Risk. The Utility’'s investment policy limits investments in commercial paper
and other corporate debt to the top two highest classifications. The Utility did
not invest in any commercial paper or other corporate debt during the year. The
Utility’s investment in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust is unrated.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Utility’s investment policy does not allow for a
prime bankers’ acceptance or commercial paper and other corporate debt balances to
be greater than ten percent of its total deposits and investments. The policy also
iimits the amount that can be invested in a single issue to five percent of its
total deposits and investments. The Utllity held no such investments during the
year.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in
the event of a bank failure, the Utility’s deposits may not be returned to it. The
Utility’s deposits are entirely covered by federal depesitory insurance or by the
State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. This
chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in
the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Utility will not be able to
recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an ocutside party. The Utility had no custodial risk with regards to
investments, since all investments were held by the Utility or its agent in the
Utility’s name.

- 13 -



MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Compenent Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{3} Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments, Continued

A reconciliation of the Utility’s cash and cash equivalents and investments as shown
on the balance sheets follows:

2008 2007
Cash on hand ] 100 ] 100G
Carrying amount of deposits 6,508,747 5,396,087

Carrying amount of Iowa Public

Agency Investment Trust 500,000 200,000
Total $ 7,008,847 $ 5,895,167

Current Assets 2008 2007
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,104,585 8§ 3,540,017
Investments 550,000 1,885,000
Restricted Cash 354,262 471,150
Total $ 7,008,847 4§ 5,896,167

of the unrestricted cash and investments listed above, the Board of Trustees of
the Municipal Gas Utility has made no reserve fund designations.

{4} Capital Assets

A summary of capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

follows:
Additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfers Ending
2008 Balance In Qut Balance
Capital Assets, not being
depreciated:
Land S 41,350 $ - $ - $ 41,350
Construction,
Work-in-progress 56,115 986,305 528,794 513,626
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 97,465 986,305 528,794 554,976
Capital assets,
being depreciated:
Infrastructure 16,496,833 481,716 111,528 16,867,021
Buildings and improvements 1,876,762 14,565 622,209 1,269,118
Eguipment 761,884 32,513 127,331 667,066
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 19,135,479 528,784 861,068 18,803,205
Less accumulated depreciation 7,798,286 692,711 880,266 7,610,731
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 11,337,193 (163,917} (19,198) 11,182,474
Capital assets, net 511,434,658 £ 822,388 S 509,596 $11,747,450




MUNICIPAL, GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedaxr Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(4) Capital Assets, Continued

Additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfers Ending
2007 Balance In out Balance
Capital Assets, not being
depreciated:
Land 8 41,350 5 - 3 - g 41,350
Construction,
Work-in-progress 516,704 652,377 1,132,966 56,115
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 558,054 652,377 1,112,966 97,465
Capital assets,
being depreciated:
Infrastructure 16,161,337 368,537 33,041 16,486,833
Buildings and improvements 1,145,703 732,579 1,520 1,876,762
Equipment 750,034 11,850 - 761,884
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 18,057,074 1,112,966 34,561 19,135,479
Less accumulated depreciation 7,177,673 664,473 43,860 7,798,286
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 10,879,401 148,493 (9,259} 11,337,193
Capital assets, net $11,437,458 $ 1,100,870 5 1,103,667 $11,434,658

{5} Noncurrent Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as

follows:
Amounts

Beginning Ending Due Within
2008 Balance addicions Reductions Balance One Year

Series 2005 gas refunding
capital loan notes $ 400,000 $ - § 400,000 =1 - 5 -

Unamcrtized discount

on capital loan notes {325) - {325) - -
399,675 - 399,675 - g -

Current installments of

long-term debt (399,675) - {399,575) -
Long-term debt, less

Current installments - - ~ -
Customer advances

for construction 178,551 34,968 37,878 175,641
Other liabilities 180,406 121,929 69,831 232,504
Other current

liabilities 358, 957 156,897 107,709 408, 145
Total noncurrent

liabilities $ 358,957 $ 156,897 § 107,709 S 408,145

- 15 —
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Noncurrent Liabilities, Continued

2mounts
Beginning Reduction Ending Due Within
2007 Balance Additions s Balance One Year
Series 2005 gas refunding
capital loan notes £ 995,000 5 - $ 595,000 § 400,000 $ 400,000
Unamortized discount on
revenue bonds {1,340) - {1,015} (325} (3258)
993,660 - 593, 985 399,675 S 399,875
Current installiments
of long-term debt {595,000) 325 {(195,000) (399,675)
Long-term debt, less
current installments 398,660 325 398, 985 -
Customer advances
for construction 176,061 66,810 64,320 178,551
Other liabilities 234,300 148,162 202,056 180,406
Other current
liabilities 410,361 214,872 266,376 358, 957
Total noncurrent
liabilities $ 809,021 $ 215,297 $ 665,361 § 358,957

(e}

The Series 2005 revenue refunding capital loan notes matured and the £final paymwent

was made July 1, 2008. The Gas Utility no longer has any bond debt outstanding.

Pension and Retirement Benefits

The Utility contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS), a

cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
State of Iowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits, which are
established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing IPERS,
P.0. Box 9117, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-3117.

Plan members were required to contribute 3.90% of their anmual covered salary and the

In

Utility is required tc contribute 6.05% of annual covered payrell through JSune 30,
2008. Beginning July 1, 2008 plan members are required to contribute 4.10% of
their annual covered salary and the Utility is required to contribute 6.35% of
annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements are established by State
statute. The Utility's contributions for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007,
and 2006 were $119,626; $111,999; and $105,801; respectively, equal to the
required contributions for each year.

accordance with the Code of TIowa Section 509A, the Utility allows retiring
employees to continue health insurance coverage on the self-funded health
insurance plan at the employees’ own cost until eligible for Medicare benefits.
gualifying employees with 20 years of Utility service, 88 IPERS points and having
reached 55 years of age may convert their accrued sick leave value into paid
health insurance premiums upon retirement. This benefit will be phased out by
June 30, 2010. In 2008 the benefit was reduced to 75% of accrued sick leave and
in 2009 to June 30, 2010 it will be reduced to 30% and zero thereafter. The
Utility recognized liability of $33,415 and $7,020; respectively, for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(2 Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Income Tax Status

The Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes under the applicable tax
codes.

Related Party Transactions

The Utility provides gas service to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Operating
revenues from the service provided amounted to $147,481 and $121,782 in 2008 and
2007, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Utility earned a management fee
of $21,424 from the Municipal Communications Utility for administration, £inance,
human resources and legal services, which 1s recorded in miscellaneous
nonoperating revenue.

Risk Management

The Cedar Falls Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities
{Utilities) are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees;
and natural disasters. The Utilities purchase commercial insurance for claims
related to these risks.

The Utilities maintain a risk management account £for risks related to their self-
funded medical insurance plan. The risk management account provides employee
health insurance coverage for the Utilities’ employees and participating retirees.
The Utilities self-fund the Ffirst $60,000 of claims per individual and have
insurance for claims above this amount. In additicon, the Utilities have aggregate
stop loss coverage for the 2008 plan year for aggregate claims exceeding $2.1

million. tiabiiities of the risk wmanagement account are reported when it is
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated.

Liabilities include an estimated amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported (IBNR) which represent estimates of the eventual loss on claims arising
prior to year-end. Changes in the balances of the Utilities liabilities during
the past two years are as follows:

2008 2007
Unpaid Claims and IBNR, beginning of year $ 185,000 $ 300,000
Current year costs including IBNR 1,544,287 1,424,435
Claims Paid {1,435,687) (1,539,435)
Unpaid Claims and IBNR, end of year § 293,600 § 185,000

The Utility has recorded $52,848 and %38,B850 in accounts pa&able for its share of
these unpaid claims and IBNR at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Utilities are a member of the Iowa Municipalities Workers' Compensation
Association (the Association), which was established to provide members a group
self-insurance program for their workers’ compensation liabilities. Approximately
480 governmental entities participate in the Assoclation. A beoard of trustees
consisting of seven members is elected by the members participating in the
Association to manage and conduct the business and affairs of the Association.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Risk Management, Continued

The following table sets forth summarized financial data of the Association as of and

for its year ended June 30, 2008.

Cash and cash eguivalents and investments $41,832,212
Receivables 1,587,842
Cther assets 555,181

Total assets %43,975,235
Total liabilities $20,132,854
Total equity 23,842,381

Total liabilities and equity $43,975,235
Total revenues % 8,727,540
Total expenses 3,056,377

Distribution to members -

Net increase in equity $ 5,671,163

There have been nc instances where the amount of settlement has exceeded available

coverage in the past three vyears. There has been no significant reduction in
insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year.

(10) Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Plan Description

The Cedar Falls Utilities administers a single-employer defined benefit medical

health care plan {The Plan) for all four utilities. The plan provides self-insured
medical, wision, and prescription drug coverage, and to all active and retired
empioyees and their eligible dependents. Eligible retirees receive health care
coverage through the same plans that are available for active employees. To be
eligible for these benefits employees at their retirement date must be a minimum
of 55 years old, have been employed for the preceding four years, and be enrolled
in the plan. Plan contributions are required £rom retirees based on an amount
equal to the full cost of active members. These medical benefits terminate upon
attaining Medicare eligibility. Ia addition, the Plan provides a $5,000 in life
insurance . benefits to all retiree who elect this coverage and agree to pay a
contribution for this coverage.

Funding Policy

The Utility, with assistance from their third-party administrators, establishes and

amends contribution requirements for both active and retiree members on an annual
basis. The current funding policy is to pay health claims as they occur and the
required contribution is based on pay-as-you-go financing. For the year ending
December 31, 2008, the Utility contributed §140,936 and retirees receilving
benefits contributed $153,307 through their required contributions.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(10) Other Post Emplovment Benefits {OPEB)., Continued

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligations

The Plan’s annual OPEB expense is calculated based on the annual required
contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of Gensral Accouating Standards Board (GASB) Statement No 45,
This standard was implemented in 2008. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period
not to exceed thirty years. The following schedule shows the components of the
annual OPEB expense for the year, the amount actually contributed te the plan, and
changes in the net OPEB cbligation:

2008

Annual required contribution $ 293,000
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation -
Adjustment to annual required

contribution 9,572
Annual OPEB expense 289,428
Contributions and payments made (12,371}
Increase in net OPEB ohligation $ 301,799
Net OPEBR obligation, December 31, 2007 -
Net OPEB obligation, December 31, 2008 § 301,798

The Gas Utility’'s share of the December 31, 2008 Net OPEB obligation is $55,291.

The Utility’'s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of anmual OPEB cost contributed to the
plan, and net OPEB obligation for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Percentage
0f Annual
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
December 31, 2008 $ 289,428 -4.27% $ 301,799

Funded Status and Funding Progress

Bs of Jamuary 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial
accrued 1liability (RAL) and unfunded actuarial accrued liability (URAL) for
benefits was $3,436,000. The Plan is unfunded since there are no assets and
retiree benefits are paid annually on a cash basis. Because The Plan is unfunded,
the AAL and URAL are equal. The covered payroll is the yearly payroil of actives
covered by the plan and was $11,162,424, in 2008 and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 30.8%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healtheare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. There are no plans to fund The Plan at this time.
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MUNICIPAL GAS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, TOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(10) Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB), Continued

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive

plan {the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members} and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each wvaluation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan members to
that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used inciude techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term wvolatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial wvalue of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial valuation date: January 1, 2007
Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method: Level Percentage Of Projected Payroll
Remaining amortization period: 30 years
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount Rate 5.0%
Healthcare Trend Rate 11.0% declining .5% annually to 6%
Projected Salary Increases 4.0%

(11) Flood Event

On June 10, 2008, Cedar Falls Utilities was hit by a major flood event that destroyed

or severely damaged many Utility assets. The flood destroyed the first floor of
the administrative building, office furnishings and equipment, meters, regulators,
and tools. The Utilities began immediate clean up and werk with the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (¥FEMA) for reconstruction, repair and remediation of
Utility facilities. The Utility continues working with FEMA submitting costs
related to recovery, repair and remediation and ids still in the process of
repalring and replacing assets lost in the flood. As of December 31, 2008,
Utility administrative facilities and generation facilities were still not
completely repaired and operational. As of December 31, 2008, the Gas Utility has
spent $35%5,791 in operational expense for flood recovery and $616,207 in asset
repair and replacement. The Utility has recognized $277,309 in Other Operating
Revenues for FEMA reimbursement expected for operational losses and $505,827 in
Other Non-Operating Revenues for FEMA reimbursement expected for capital lIosses.
As of December 31, 2008, the Utility recognized a receivable of $569,208 for FEMA
flood disagter reimbursement. The Utility has received $316,763 in FEMA
reimbursements between January 1, 2002 and March 31, 200% with the remainder due
upon completion of the review by the State of Iowa.

(12) Commitments and Contingencies

The Utility has a natural gas transportation contract with a pipeline, which expires

in 2022. Total payments include transportation charges and commodity charges.
Minimum transportation payments for 2009 are expected to be approximately $585,800
at current rates. '

The Utility is a member of the Central Plains Energy Project. This organization was

Asg

created in 2006 to accomplish the members’ joint and cooperative action with
respect to the acqguisition, transportation, storage, management and related
services and functions which are necessary to provide the members secure,
reliable, and economic supplies of natural gas. This membership allows the
Utility to purchase a fixed amount of gas for 20 years at a discount from market
prices.

of December 31, 2008, the Utility was involved in several construction projects

with an estimated cost to complete of approximately $514,000 including
approximately $480,000 in flood-related capital projects.

- 20 -
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Gas Utility

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Gas Utility of Cedar Falls,
lIowa (the Utility), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, and have issued our report
thereon dated May 4, 2009. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Contro] Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statemnents, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the Utility’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Utility’s internal control over financial reposting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functioms, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s
internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinien.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility’s operations for the year ended
December 31, 2008, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our
audit of the financial statements of the Utility and are reported in Part II of the Schedule of Findings,
which has been submitted under separate cover. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Utility in a separate letter dated May 4,
2009.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and customers of the Utility and other parties to whom the Utility may report. This report is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of the
Utility during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the above
matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

é‘—/fﬂ% Lo’

Dubuque, lowa
May 4, 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Water Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Water Utility of Cedar Falls, lowa (the
Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4, 2009, on our
consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 4 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

C:;M L7

May 4, 2009
Dubuque, Iowa
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY CF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
becember 31, 2008 and 2007

The following discussion and analysis of the Municipal Water Utility (Utility} of
the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa's financial performance provides an overview of the
Utility's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. This
information should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the
accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this section.

Financial Highlights

s The Utility's net assets increased as a result of non-cperating revenues of
contributions in aid of construction and FEMA reimbursements for flood related
capital projects. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, total assets were 521,323,118 and
$20,042,250, respectively, and total 1liabilities were $655,640 and $820,411,
respectively, resulting in net assets of $20,627,478 and $19,221,839, respectively.

e The last water rate increase of approximately 10.8% for all customer classes was
effective in January of 2008.

¢« In 2008, operating revenues increased by 15.0% from 2007 at $2,640,322 while
operating expenses increased 6.8% over 2007 to $2,612,460. The 2008 increase in
operating revenues is due teo the 2008 rate increase and $123,249 in FEMA
reimbursement revenue for operation related flood expenses, which is 35.8% of the
increase in operating revenue.

e In 2008, the Utility had operating income of $27,862 compared to an operating
loss of $149,688 in 2007,

on June 10, 2008, Cedar Falls Utilities was hit by a major £flocd event that
destroyed or severely damaged many Utility assets. The flood destroyed the first
floor of the administrative building, office furnishings and equipment, meters,

well equipment, and tools. The Utilities began immediate clean up and work with
the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA} for reconstruction, zrepair and
remediation of Utility facilities. The Utility continues working with FEMA

submitting costs related to recovery, repair and remediation and is still in the
process of repairing and replacing assets lost in the flood. 3As of December 31,
2008, Utility administrative facilities and generation facilities were still not
completely repaired and operational. As of December 31, 2008, the Water Utility
has spent $184,482 in operational expense for flood recovery and $264,3902 in asset
repair and replacement. The Utility has recognized $123,24% in Other Operating
Revenues Ffor FEMA reimbursement expected for operational lesses and $218,783 in
Other Non-Operating Revenues for FEMA reimbursement expected for capital losses.
As of December 31, 2008, the Utility recognized a receivable of $5246,162 for FEMA
flood disaster reimbursement. The Utility has received 5$140,784 in FEMA
reimbursements between January 1, 200% and March 31, 2009 with the remainder due
upeon completion of the review by the State of Iowa.

Qverview of the Financial Statements

Management’'s discussion and analysis (MDA} serves as an introduction to the
financial statements, and the MDA represents management’s examination and analysis
of the Utility’s financial condition and performance. The financial statements
report information about the Utility wusing full acecrual accounting methods as
utilized by similar entities in the private sector.



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOHWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

The balance sheets include the Utility’'s assets and 1iabilities and provide
information ahout the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and
the obligations to c¢reditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for
evaluating the capital structure of the Utility and assessing the ligquidity and
flexibility of the Utility.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets present the resulis
of the Utility’'s activities (revenues and expenses) over the course of the fiscal
year and can provide informatiom about the Utility's recovery of its costs. Retail
rates to the Utility's customersg are established by the Board of Trustees based on
operating costs, debt service requirements, and anticipated capital needs. The
fundamental objective of this rate model is to provide adequate revenue to cover
all costs.

The statements of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net
changes in cash resulting from operations, capital and related financing activities
and investing activities. This statement provides answers to such questions as
where did the cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in
cash balances during the reporting period.

The notes to the financial statements provide reguired disclosures and other
information that is essential to a full understanding of data provided in the
statements. The notes present information about the Utility’s accounting policies,
significant account balances and activities, material risks, ohligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events.

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and
indicators for management, monitoring and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheet Information

2008 2007
Current assets $ 3,664,621 5 4,007,948
Capital assets, net 17,633,905 16,034,302
Other noncurreni assets 24,592 -
Total assets $21,323,118 §20,042,250

Current llabilities £ 576,541 s 739,598
Noncurreant liabilities 119,059 BO,B13
Total liabilities ] 695,640 ] 820,411

Invested in capital assets,

net of related debt 517,633,505 $16,034,302
inrestricted 2,993,573 3,187,537
Total net assets §20,627,478 $19,221,839




MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Condensed Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

2008 2007

Sales of water § 2,403,114 § 2,175,197
Other 237,208 12G,825
Total operating revenues 2,640,322 2,296,022
System operation and maintenance 908,406 932,486
Depreciation and amortization 534,789 494,712
Bervice and administrative 1,169,265 1,018,502
Total operating expenses 2,612,460 2,445,710
Operating income (loss) 27,862 {149,688)
Interest income 101,833 146,225
Other, net 589,743 383,589
Total non-cperating revenues (expenses) 691,376 529,814
Income before capital contributions 718,238 380,126
Capital contributions 686,401 716,087
Change in net assets 1,405,639 1,096,193

Net assets, beginning of year 19,221,835 18,125, 646
Net assets, end of year 520,627,478 $19,221,839

Financilal Analysis

Current assets decreased 8.6% in 2008 primarily due to the reduction in investments
of $1,622,500 in order to make cash available for fliood expenses offset somewhat by
$246,162 in FEMA Grants Receivable and $1,016,503 increase in cash.

Current liabilities decreased 22.0% in 2008 due to a 27.6% decrease in all accounts
payable.

Noncurrent liabilities increased $38,286 in 2008 due to the increased severance and
retiree insurance liabilities in 2008.

System operation and maintenance expenses decreased 2.6% in 2008 primarily due to a
6.6% decrease in distribution operations and maintenance expenses, $37,879. This
decrease was offset somewhat by a 3.9% increase in power and pumping expenses
primarily due to increased pumping equipment maintenance.

Service and administrative expenses increased 14.8% in 2008 primarily due to flood
expenses related to operations of $184,482. Depreciation expense increased 8.1% in
2008 resulting from completion of construction projects.

Interest income decreased 30.5% in 2008 primarily due to a reduction in investments
of 41,622,500 in order to make cash available for flood expenses and the drop in
the rates of interest earned.



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLE, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Jowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Other, net revenues increased in 2008 by 53.7% primarily due to the Utility
recognizing $216,783 in FEMA grant vrevenue for its expenditures for restoring
and/or replacing capital assets due to the 2008 500-year flood event.

Non cash capital coatributions decreased 4.1% in 2008 due to reduction in new
developments requiring distribution extensions during the year.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Net capital assets represent 82.7 % of total assets for the Utility. DNet capital
assets increased 10.0% from the prior year primarily due to completion of capital
projects in 2008. Additional detail on the change in capital assets can be found
in Note 4.

The Utility has no outstanding debt as of December 31, 2008.



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, TOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2008 and 2007

bAgsets 2008 2007
Capital assets: (note 4)
Capital assets, in service $ 23,662,594 4 23,024,283
Less accumulated depreciation 7,187,386 7,004,911
16,475,208 16,019,372
Construction work in progress 3,158,697 14,930
Net capital assets 17,633,905 16,034,302
Noncurrent asseis:
Loans Receivable 24,592 -
Total noncurrent investments 24,582 -
Current assets:
Cash and cash eguivalents (note 2; 1,798,841 80%,913
Cash - Restricted {note 2 and 3) 160,254 132,719
Unrestricted investments: (note 2) 970,000 2,592,500
Receivables:
Customer aceounts, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of § 3,600 in 2008 and $3,674 inm 2007 338,831 307,227
Loans receivable 8,295 -
Government grants - FEMA (note 11) 246,162 -
Ctherxr 9,765 7,478
Interest 15,332 44,569
Material and supplies 97,676 94,491
Prepayments and cther 22,425 15,050
Total current assets 3,664,621 4,007,948
Total assets $ 21,323,118 $ 20,042,250

See accompanying notes to financial statements. - 5 -



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2008 and 2047

Liabilities 2008 2007
Current liabilities:
Acceounts payable g 400, 100 s 552,811
Accrued wages and vacations 123,982 103,034
Other accrued expenses 52,479 83,753
Total current liabilities 576,541 739,598
Noncurrent liabilities:
Other liabilities (note 5 and 10) 119,059% 80,813
Total noncurrent liabilities 119,099 80,813
Total liabilities 695,640 820,411

Nef Assets

Invested in capital assets 17,633,865 16,034,302
Unrestricred 2,993,573 31,187,337
Total net assets 20,627,478 19,221,839
Total liakilities and net assets 521,323,118 § 20,042,250

See accompanying notes to fipancial statements. - 6 -



MUNTCIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(2 Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Operating revenues:
Sales of water:

Residential
Industrial
Commercial
Governmental (ncte 8)
Interdepartmental

Total sales of water
Other operating revenues
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Production:
Purchased power from affiliated utilitcy
Other
Distributicn
Depreciation
Customer accounts
Customer service and information expenses
Sales
Administrative and general
Taxes other than income taxes
Total operating expenses

Operating income {loss)
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Net increase {decrease) in the fair value of investments
Miscellaneous revenue (expense), net {(note 8)
Intergovernmental grant funds (note 131)
Potal non-operating revenues {expenses)
Income bhefore contributions
Noncash Capital contributions
Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of yvear

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$ 1,722,353

$ 1,582,019

37,340 29,250
460, 946 391,174
151,889 123,375

30,586 49,375

2,403,114 2,175,197
237,208 120,825
2,640,322 2,296,022
132,519 125,467
237,012 230,275
538,875 576,754
534,78% 494,712
202,427 198,764
25,679 22,066
8,576 i9,056
860,012 710,641
72,581 &7,975
2,612,460 2,445,710

27,862 (149, 688)

101,633 146,225

7.5C0 24,400
365,460 314,189
216,783 45,000
651,376 528,814
715,238 380,126
686,401 716,087
1,405,638 1,086,183
18,125,644

13,221,839

§ 20,627,478

$ 19,221,839




MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 33, 2008 and 2007

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $

Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing actiwvities:

Proceeds from customer advances for construction

Refunds of customer advances for construction

Acguisition, construction and removal cost of
capital assets

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Reimbursement of utility construction costs

Intergovernmental grants

Net cash used in capital and related
fipancing activities

Cash flows Erom investing activities:

Proceeds from maturities of investment securities
Purchase of investment securities
Interest received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash ecuivalents, end of year {(pote 1) $

See accompanying notes to financizl statements.

2008 2007
2,573,987 $& 2,570,851
{1,641,955) (1,277,679}
(573, 265) (584,840)
358,767 708,332
- 3,845
(3,849) -
{1,527,350) (543,580}
11,949 2,502
199,333 56,961
216,783 45,000
(1,103,134) (435,268)
4,800,000 3,595,717
(3,170,000} (3,345,717)
130,870 169,015
1,760,870 419,015
1,016,503 692,079
942,632 250,583
1,959,135 5 942,632

-8 -




MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls,

Statements of Cash Flows, Continued
Years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities

Operating loss 5

Adjustments to reconcile coperating loss te net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation of capital assets

Other Income (expense}, net

{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in loans receivable
(Increase) decrease in intergovenrmental grants
(Increase) decrease in materials and supplies
(Increase) decrease in prepayments and other
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in accrued wages and vacation
Increase {decrease) in other accrued expenses

Increase (decreass} in other liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities $

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:

Contributions from contractors in aid of constructien ]

See accompanying notes te financial statements.

Towa)

2008 2007
27,862 3 {149,688)
534,789 494,712
233,537 310,582
(28,604) {46, 864)
{32,887) -
{246,162) -
(3,185) (6,844}
{5,661} (6,348)
(152, 711) 23,032
20,928 8,078
(27,425) 30,932
38,286 50,760
358,767 S 708,332
686,401 g 716,067

_9..
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IO0OWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b}

{c)

{d)

Organization and Basis of Accounting

The Municipal Water Utility (Utility) of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa is a
separate and distinct city utility and is chartered under Towa Code Section
388. The Utility is a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls. The
Utility's rates are set by its governing board. The Utility follows the
accounting practices prescribed through the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission for regulated utilities and proprietary £fund accounting for
governmental entities under accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. '

The Utility, as a regulated utility, £ollows the Code of Federal Regulations
Title 18 - Conservation of Power and Water Resources, Chapter I - Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission, Department of Energy.

In accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
{GASB) Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
the Utility applies only Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Beard opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 1989.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are stated at original cost. Depreciation of capital assets in
service is calculated on a composite straight-line method at rates based on
estimated service lives and salvage wvalues of several classes of capital

assets. The range of estimated service lives for the classes of capital
assets are as follows: infrastructure - 20 to 70 years, buildings and
improvements - 30 to 45 years, and eguipment - 20 to 85 years. The

depreciation provisions were equivalent to an overall composite rate of 2.3%
of depreciable assets for 2008 and 2007.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. At the
time capital assets are retired, the original cost of the asset plus cost of
removal less salvage are charged to accumulated depreciation.

Cash and Investments

Investments are stated at their fair value on the balance sheets. The Utility's
investments stated at fair value reflect guoted market prices at the balance
sheet date, for U.S. Treasury and government agency debt securities. The cost
of certificates of deposit approximates fair value.

The Utility considers all highly ligquid investments with maturity of three months
or less when purchased to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of
cash flows. Included in cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2008 and
2007 was $250,000 for amounts invested in the Iowa Public Agency Investment
Trust (IPAIT).

Inventories

Materials and supplies are valued at average cost. Inventories are recorded as
an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed.
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Summary of Significant Accounting Poligcies, Continued

(e)

(£)

{g}

{h}

(i)

(3}

Cperating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues inciude revenues resulting from the sale of water and service

revenues. Operating expenses include expenses for power production,
distribution, depreciation, customer accounts, customer service and
information, sales, and administrative and general. Non-operating revenues

and expenses include those derived from capital and non-capital activities,
and investing activities.

Revenues from the sale of water are based on billing rates, which are applied to
customers' consumption of water. The Utility records estimated umnbilled
revenue at the end of accounting periods. Revenues earned, but not yet bilied
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, were $111,529 and $102,646, respectively,
and are recorded in customer accounts receivable.

Capital Contributions

Contributions in aid of construction represent the actual cost of property
contributed to the Utility and nonrefundable payments from consumers, which
are used to partially offset the cost of the construction of additienal
capital assets.

Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the
financial statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used for acquisitiom,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
government entities.

The Utility‘s poliecy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principals generally accepted in the United States of BAmerica requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ
from those estimates.

Reclasgifications

Reclassifications of prior year’s amounts have been made for comparability.

Budgetary Information

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the Board of Trustees annually adopts a
budget on the cash basis following required public notice and hearing for
all funds. The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar
statuteorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the
cash basis budget and appropriations lapse at year end.



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

{(§) Budgetary Information, Continued

Formal and legal budgetary control is based on the total of all four utilities as
a whole. Due to a devastating June 2008 flood that significantly damaged much
utility property and related unexpected recovery expenditures, a budget
amendment identifying these additional expenditures was filed with the state
of TIowa.

(2} Restricted Assets

The composition of restricted assets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as fellows:

2008
Current Assets - Restricted Cash Investments Total
Self Insured Medical and Dental $ 160,294 ) - $ 160,294
Total Current Assets - Restricted 160,294 - 160,294
Total restricted assets $ 160,254 5 o 5 160,294
2007
Current Assets - Restricted Cash Investments Total
Self insured Medical and Dental S 132,719 8 - § 132,718
Total Current Assets - Restricted 132,719 - 132,719
Total restricted assets § 132,719 g 0 s 132,719

Amounts deposited in the Self-Insured Medical and Dental fund may only be used for
medical and dental reserves and expenses.

{3) Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments

Cash on Hand. <Cash on hand represents petty cash funds used for current operating
purposes. The carrying amount at December 31, 2008 was 345 and 2007 was $45.

Deposits. At December 31, 2008, the Utility's carrying amount of depoesits,
incliuding $970,000 of certificates of deposits, was $2,679,080. At December 31,
2007, the Utility’'s carrying amount of deposits, including 351,600,000 of
certificates of deposits, was $2,2352,587.

Investments. The utility iz authorized by statute to invest publiic funds not
currently needed for operating expenses in obligations of the United States
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other
evidences of deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the
Board of Trustees; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated
commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end
management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or
improvement certificates of a drainage district.




MUNTCIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{3} Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments, Continued

As of December 31, 2008 the Utility had no Federal Agency Obligation investments or

maturities.
2008
Investment Type Investment Maturities {In Years}
Less than 1 1 to 3 Total
Federal Agency
Obligations 5 - g - ] -

As of December 31, 2007, the Utility had the following investments and maturities.
{The Utility assumes callable bonds will not bhe called):

2007
Investment Type Investment Maturities (In Years)
Less than 1 1 to 3 Total
Federal Agency
Obligations $ 892,500 5 - % 992,500

In addition, the Ttility had investments in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust
which are valued at an amortized cost of $250,000 at December 31, 2008 and 2007,
pursuant to Rule 2a-7 under the Investment Company Act of 1946.

Interest Rate Risk. The Utility’'s investment policy limits the investments of
operating funds (funds expected to be expended in the current budget year or
within 15 months of receipt) in instruments that mature within 397 days. Funds
not identified as operating funds way be invested in instruments with maturities
longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and
use of the Utility.

Credit Risk. fThe Utility’'s investment policy limits investments in commercial paper
and other corporate debt to the top two highest classificatioms. The Utility did
not invest in any commercial paper or other corporate debt during the year. The
Utility’'s investment in the Iowa Public Agency Investment Trust is unrated.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Utility’'s investment policy does not allow for a
prime bankers’ acceptance or commercial paper and other corporate debt balances to
be greater than ten percent of its total deposits and investments. The policy also
limits the amount that can be invested in a single issue to five percent of its
total deposits and investments. The Utility held no such investments during the
year.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in
the event of a bank Ffailure, the Utility’s deposits may not be returned to it. The
Utility's deposits are entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by the
State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Iowa. This
chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, ir
the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Utility will not be able to
recover the value of its investiments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Utility had no custodial risk with regards to
investments, since all investments were held by the Utility or its agent in the
Utility’'s name.

- 13 -



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{3} Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments, Continued

A reconciliation of the Utility’'s cash and cash equivalents and investments as shown
on the balance sheets follows:

2008 2007
Cash on hand 5 45 5 45
Carrying amount of deposits 2,679,080 2,292,587
Carrying amount of federal
agency obligations - 992,500
Carrying amount of Iowa Public
Agency Investment Trust 250,000 250,000
Total $ 2,925,135 $ 3,535,132
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,798,841 ] 809,913
Investments 970,000 2,582,800
Restricted Cash 160,254 132,719
Total § 2,929,135 $§ 3,535,132

0f the unrestricted cash and investments listed above, the Board of Trustees of
the Municipal Water Utility has made no reserve fund designatioms.

{4) Capital Assets

A summary of capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007
follows:

Additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfers Ending
2008 Balance In Cut Balance
Capital Assets, not being
depreciated:
Land s 63,466 g - £ - [ 63,466
Construction,
Work-in-progress 14,830 2,118,245 974,478 1,158,657
Total capital assets,
not bheing depreciated 78,396 2,118,245 974,478 1,222,163
Capital assets,
being depreciated:
Infrastructure 21,754,534 964,290 29,509 22,689,315
Buildings and improvements 738,926 5,997 267,747 477,176
Equipment 467,357 4,191 38,911 432,637
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 22,960,817 974,478 336,167 23,595,128
Less accumulated depreciation 7,004,911 548,739 366,264 7,187,386
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 15, 955, 806 425,739 (30,097) 16,411,742
Capital assets, net 816,034,302 §2,543,984 5 944,381 $17,633,9058

_14_



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,

IOWA

(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

{4} Capital Assets, Continued

December 31,

2008 and 2007

Additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfers Ending
2007 Balance In out Balance
Capital Assets, not being
depreciated:
Land g 63,466 8 - 5 - 5 63,466
Construction,
Work-in-progress 635,781 1,211,788 1,832,639 14,930
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 699,247 1,211,788 1,832,639 78,396
Capital assets,
being depreciated:
Infrastructure 20,295,881 1,504,565 45,912 21,754,534
Buildings and improvements 424,473 315,066 613 738,826
Equipment 454,349 13,008 - 467,357
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 21,174,703 1,832,639 46,525 22,960,817
Less accumulated depreciation 6,548,748 504,452 48,289 7,004,811
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 14,625,955 1,328,187 (1,764) 15,955,906
Capital assets, net $15,325,202 52,539,975 51,830,875 516,034,302

{5} Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities activity for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as
follows:
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
2008 Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Other liabilities $ 80,813 S 102,534 g 64,248 § 115,099 s -
Total noncurrent
liakilities $ 80,813 5 102,534 g 64,248 $ 119,099 8 -
Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
2007 Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Other liabilities % 30,053 S 150,078 8 89,318 S BO0,813 s -
Total noncurrent )
liabilities 4 30,0532 S 150,078 3 99,318 S5 B0,8B13 s -

(6)

Pension and Retirement Benefits

The Utility contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System {IPERS}, a
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the

State of Iowa.

publicly available

IPERS provides

report

retirement

that

includes

financial

and death benefits,
established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries.
financial
required supplementary information.
P.0. Box 9117, Des Moines,

which are

IPERS issues a
statements
The report may be obtained by writing IPERS,
Towa 50306-9117.

and
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{Ap Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Pension and Retirement Benefits, Continued

Plan members were required to contribute 3.90% of their annual covered salary and the
Utility is required to contribute 6.05% of annual covered payroll through June 30,
2008. Beginning July 1, 2008 plan members are required to contribute 4.10% of
their annual covered salary and the Utility is required to contribute 6.35% of
annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements are established by State
statute. The Utility’s contributions for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007
and 2008, were $64,319; 558,083; and $55,119; respectively, equal to the regquired
contributions for each year.

In accordance with the Code of Iowa Section 5093, the Utility allows retiring
employees to continue health insurance coverage on the self-funded health
insurance plan at the employees’ own cost until eligible for Medicare bemnefits.
Qualifying employees with 20 years of Utility service, 88 IPERS points and having
reached 55 years of age may convert their accrued sick leave value into paid
health insurance premiums upon retirement. This benefit will be phased out by
June 30, 2010. In 2008 the benefit was reduced to 75% of accrued sick leave and
in 2009 teo June 30, 2010 it will be reduced to 50% and zero thereafter. The
Utility recognized liability of $15,778 and $3,120; respectively, for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Income Tax Status

The Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes under the applicable tax
codes.

Related Party Transactions

The Utility provides water service to the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa. Operating
revenues from the service provided amounted to $59,776 and $50,764 in 2008 and
2007, respectively.

The Utility also provides billing and collection services to the City for the City's
sanitary sewer system and garbage and refuse service. Revenues from the service
provided amounted to $159,535 in 2008 and 2007, and are recorded in miscellanecus
non-operating revenue.

For the vears ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Utility earned a management fee
of 51,863 from the Municipal Communications Utlllty for administration, £finance,
human resources and legal services, which is recorded in miscellaneous non-
operating revenue.

Risk Management

The Cedar Falls Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communicaticns Utilities
(Utilities) are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omisgions; injuries Lo employees;
and natural disasters. The Utilities purchase commercial insurance for claims
related to these risks.

The Utilities maintain a risk management account for risks related to their self-
funded medical insurance plan. The risk management account provides employee
health insurance coverage for the Utilities’ employees and participating retirees.
The Utilities self-fund the first 560,000 of claims per individual and have
insurance for claims above this amount. In addition, the Utilities have aggregate
stop loss coverage for the 2008 plan year for aggregate claims exceeding $2.1

million. Liabilities of the risk wmanagement account are reported when it is
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated.



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{9} Risk Management, Continued

Liabilities include an estimated amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported (IBNR) which represent estimates of the eventual less on claims arising
prior to year-end. Changes 1in the balances of the Utilities liabilities during
the past two years are as follows:

2008 2007
Unpaid claims and IBNR, beginning of year $ 185,000 $ 300,000
Current year costs including IBNR 1,544,287 1,424,435
Claims paid (1,435,687} {1,539,435)
Unpaid claims and IBNR, end of year $ 293,600 $ 185,000

The Utility has recorded $23,488 and $16,650 in accounts payable for its share of
these unpaid claims and IBNR at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Utilities are a member of the JTowa Municipalities Workers’ Compensation
Association (the Association), which was established to provide members a group
self-insurance program for their workers’ compensation liabilities. Approximately
470 governmental entities participate in the Association. A board of trustees
consisting of seven members is elected by the members participating in the
Association to manage and conduct the business and affairs of the Association.

The following table sets forth summarized firancial data of the Association as of and
for its year ended June 30, 2008.

Cash and cash equivalents and investments 541,832,212
Receivables 1,587,842
Cther assets 555,181

Total assets $43,975,235
Total liabilities $20,132,854
Total equity 23,842,381

Total liabilities and equity $43,975,23%
Total revenues $ 8,727,540
Total expenses 3,056,377

Distribution to members -

Net increase 1in equity $ 5,671,163

*here have been no instances where the amount of settlement has exceeded available
coverage in the past three years. There has been no significant reduction in
insurance coverage in the prior year.



MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{10} Other Post Employment Benefits {QPEB)

Plan Description

The Cedar Falls Utilities administers a single-employer defined benefit medical
health care plan (The Plan) for all four utilities. The plan provides self-insured
medical, vision, and prescription drug coverage, and to all active and retired
employees and their eligible dependents. Eligible retirees receive health care
coverage through the same plans that are available for active employees. ‘o be
eligible for these benefits employees at their retirement date must be a minimum
of 55 years old, have been employed for the preceding four vyears, and be enrolled
in the plan. Plan contributions are required from retirees based on an amount
equal to the full cost of active members. These medical benefits terminate upon
attaining Medicare eligibility. In addition, the Plan provides a $5,000 in life
insurance benefits to all retirees who elect this coverage and agree to pay a
contribution for this coverage.

Funding Policy

The Utility, with assistance from their third-party administrators, establishes and
amends contribution requirements for both active and retiree members on an annual
basis. The current funding policy is to pay health claims as they occur and the
required contribution is based on pay-as-you-go financing. For the year ending
December 31, 2008, the Utility contributed $140,936 and retirees receiving
benefits contributed $153,307 through their required contributions.

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligations

The Plan‘s annual OPEB expense is calculated based on the annual required
contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of General Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement ¥No
45, This standard was implemented in 2008. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial iiabilities (or funding excess) over a period
not to exceed thirty vears. ‘The following schedule shows the components of the
annual OPEB expense for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the net OPEB obligation:

2008

Annual reguired contribution $ 299,000
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation -
Adjustment to annual regquired

contribution 9,572
Annual OPEB expense 289,428
Contributions and payments made (12,371)
Increase in net OPEB obligation $ 301,799
Net OPEB obligation, December 31, 2007 -
Net OPEB obligation, December 31, 2008 S 301,799

The Water Utility’'s share of the December 31, 2008 Net OPEB obligation is
$39,411.

- 18 -



(10)

MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Other Post Employment Benefits (OPER), Continued

The Utility's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEE cost contributed to the
plan, and net OPEB obligation for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Percentage
Of Annual
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
December 31, 2008 $289,428 -4 .27% $301,799

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of January 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial wvaluation date, the actuarial
accrued 1liability {(AAL) and unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) for
benefits was $3,436,000. The Plan is unfunded since there are no assets and
retiree benefits are paid annually on a cash basis. Because The Plan is unfunded,
the AAL and UAAL are equal. The covered payrell is the yearly payroll of actives
covered by the plan and was $11,162,424, in 2008 and the ratio of the UAAL to the
covered payrcll was 30.8%.

Actuarial wvaluations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of cccurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, wmortality, and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. There are no plans to fund The Plan at this time.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each wvaluation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan members to
that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include technigques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term wvolatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial wvalue of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial valuation date: January 1, 2007
Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit
Amortization method: Level Percentage Of Projected Payroll
Remaining amortization period: 30 years
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount Rate 5.0%
Healthcare Trend Rate 11.0% declining .5% annually to 6%
Projected Salary Increases 4.0%
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MUNICIPAL WATER UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(& Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa}

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{11) Flood Event

On June 10, 2008, Cedar Falls Utilities was hit by a maior flocd event that destroyed
or severely damaged many Utility assets. The flood destroyed the first floor of
the administrative building, office furnishings and ecquipment, meters, well

equipment, and tools. The Utilities began immediate clean up and work with the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)} for reconstruction, repair and
remediation of Utility facilities. The Utility continues working with FEMA

submitting costs related to recovery, repair and remediation and is still in the
process of repairing and replacing assets lost in the flood. As of December 31,
2008, Utility administrative facilities and generation facilities were still not
completely repaired and operational. As of December 31, 2008, the Water Utility
has spent $184,482 in operational expense for flood recovery and $264,502 1in asset
repalr and replacement. The Utility has recognized $123,24% in Other Operating
Revenues for FEMA reimbursement expected for operational losses and $216,783 in
Other Non-Operating Revenues for FEMA reimbursement expected for capital losses.
As of Dbecember 31, 2008, the Utility recognized a receivable of $246,162 for FEMA
flood disaster reimbursement. The Utility has received $140,784 in FEMA
reimbursements between January 1, 2009 and March 31, 2009 with the remainder due
upon completicn of the review by the State of Iowa.

(12} Commitments and Contingencies

As of December 31, 2008, the Utility was involved in several construction projects
with an estimated cost to complete of approximately $1,159,000 including
approximately $945,000 for Water Main Extensions and $201,000 in flood-related
capital projects.

{13) Subsequent Events

Effective January 1, 2009, the Board of Trustees approved a general water rate
increase. The average increase is approximately 9.0% for all customer classes.

- 20 ~
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Water Utility

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Water Utility of Cedar
Falls, lowa (the Utility), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, and have issued our
report thereon dated May 4, 2009. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the Utility’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Utility’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s
internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that resuits in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. '

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility’s operations for the year ended
December 31, 2008, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our
audit of the financial statements of the Utility and are reported in Part II of the Schedule of Findings,
which has been submitted under separate cover. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Utility in a separate letter dated May 4,
2009.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and customers of the Utility and other parties to whom the Utility may report. This report is
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of the

Utility during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the above
matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

é"'%f%% L7

Dubugue, lowa
May 4, 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities ~ Municipal Communications Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Communications Utility of Cedar Falls,
Iowa (the Utility) (a2 component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and
the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

‘We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4, 2009, on our
consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 4 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it,

é"/%ﬁu/@ Le7

May 4, 2009
Dubuque, lowa
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

The following discussion and analysis of the Municipal Communications Utility
{(Utility) of the City of Cedar Falls, TIowa's Ffinancial performance provides an
overview of the Utility’s financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2008
and 2007. This information should be read in conjunction with the £inancial
statements and the accompanying notes to the financial statements that follow this
section.

Pinancial Highlights

» The Utility’'s net assets increased as a result of operating income. At December
31, 2008 and 2007, total assets were $13,995,150 and $12,365,649, respectively, and
total liabilities were $6,445,103 and $7,222,975, respectively, resulting in net
agsets of §7,550,047 in 2008 and net assets of §5,142,674 in 2007.

. In 2008 operating revenues increased 13.1% to $10,995,281 while operating
expenses increased 14.5% to $8,617,364. In 2007 coperating revenues increased 12.9%
to $9,721,949 while operating expenses increased 9.7% to $7,529,287.

» In 2008, the Utility operating income increased 8.4% to 52,377,917 compared to
$2,192,682 in 2007.

On June 10, 2008, Cedar Falls Utilities was hit by a major £flood event that
destroyed or severely damaged many Utiliity assets. The flcod destroyed the first
floor of the administrative building, office furnishings and equipment, and tools.
The Utilities began immediate clean up and work with the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) for reconstruction, repair and remediation of Utility

facilities. The Utility continues working with FEMA submitting costs related to
recovery, repalr and remediation and is still in the process of repairing and
replacing assets lost in the £lood. s of December 31, 2008, Utility

administrative facilities and generation facilities were still not completely
repaired and operational. As of December 31, 2008, the Communications Utility has
gpent $312,915 in operational expense for flcod recovery and $4,141 in asset repair
and replacement. The Utility has recognized $200,279 in Other Cperating Revenues
for FEMA reimbursement expected for operaticnal losses. As of December 33, 2008,
the Utility recognized a receivable of §87,163 for FEMA flood disaster
reimbursement. The Utility has received $228,773 in FEMA reimbursements between
January 1, 200% and March 31, 2009 with the remainder due upon completion of the
review by the State of Towa.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management's discussion and analysis (MDA} serves as an introduction to the
financial statements, and the MDA represents management’s examination and analysis
of the Utility’s £inancial conditien and performance. The financial statements
report information about the Utility using full accrual accounting methods as
utilized by similar entities in the private sector.

The balance sheets include the Utility’s assets and liabiiities and provide
information about the nature and amounts of investments in resources {assets} and
the obkligations te creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for
evaluating the capital structure of the Utility and assessing the liguidity and
flexibility of the Utility.




MUNICIPAIL. COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets present the results
of the Utility’s activities (revenues and expenses) over the course of the fiscal
year and can provide information about the Utility’'s recovery of its costs. Retail
rates to purchase communications sexvices are based on rates established by the
Board of fTrustees based on operating costs, debt service requirements, and
anticipated capital needs. A fundamental objective of this rate model is to
provide adequate revenue to cover all expenses.

The statements of cash flows present cash receipts, cash disbursements, and net
changes in cash resulting from operations, noncapital financing activities, capital
and related financing activities and investing activities. This statement provides
answers to such questions as where did the cash come from, what was cash used for,
and what was the change in cash balances during the reporting pericd.

The notes to the Ffinancial statements provide required disclosures and other
information that is essential to a full understanding of data provided in the
statements. The notes present information about the Utility’s accounting policies,
significant account balances and actcivities, material risks, and obligations.

Condensed Financial Information

The following condensed financial information serves as the key financial data and
indicators for management, monitoring and planning.

Condensed Balance Sheet Information

Current assets

Capital assets, net

Other noncurrent assels
Total asseis

Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Long-term debt

Total liabilities

Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt
Restricted
Unraestricted
Total net assets

2008 2007
$ 5,653,390 $§ 4,427,961
B,337,135 7,926,453
4,625 11,235
$13,995,150 $12,365,649
5 1,990,541 $ 1,777,620
264,360 256,371
4,190,202 5,188,984
$ 6,445,103 5 7,222,975

$ 3,146,933
960, 500
3,442,614

$ 1,757,469
858,833
2,426,372

$§ 7,550,047,

$ 5,142,674




MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

{Ah Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Management Discussion and Rnalysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Condensed Revenues, Expensesz and Changes in Net Assets

2008 2007

Cable television 5 6,115,838 $ 5,301,911
High speed data communications 4,679,163 4,420,038
Other Operating Revenue 200,282 -
Total operating revenues 10,995,281 9,721,949
System operation and maintenance 5,150,562 4,579,392
Depreciation 1,400,177 1,386,185
Sales, customer service, administrative 2,066,625 1,563,710
Total operating expenses 8,617,364 7,529,287
Operating income 2,377,917 2,192,662
Interest Income 84,244 122,949
Interest Expense (261,781) (299,651)
Other, net 196,993 225,476
Total non-operating revenues {expenses) 29,456 48,774
Change in net assets 2,407,373 2,241,438

Net assets, beginning of year 5,142,674 2,901,238
Net assets, end of year s 7,550,047 § 5,142,674

Financial Analysis

Current assets increased 27.7% primarily due to a 64.5% increase in cash and short-
term investments and a 47.6% increase in Other Receivables due to an $87,163 FEMA
grant receivable.

Cirrent liabilities increased 12.0% in 2008 primarily from the $155,257 increase in
accounts payable and a $20,000 increase in current installments of long-term debt.

Noncurrent iiabilities increased 3.1% in 2008 primarily due to a 33.4%, §$32,976,
increase in the severance and retirement benefit liability, offset somewhat by a
decrease in customer advances for comstruction by 15.8%, $24,987.

Long term debt, less current installments, decreased 19.2%.

Cable television operating revenues increased 15.4% in 2008. This is primarily due
to a rate increase in 2008. Basic Service revenues increased 14.6% in 2008
primarily because of a $1.00 perx subsecriber per month rate increase. Basic Plus
revenues increased 15.5% in 2008 due to a $3.00 per subscriber per month rate
increase.

Data communications operating revenues increased 5.9% in 2008. An increase of 295
subscribers in 2008 accounts for the increase. Point to Peint data service
revenues decreased by 12.1% and CyberBasic revenues decreased by 1.8% in 2008,



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Management Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Total system operation and maintenance expenses increased 12.5% in 2008 due to
Cable Television programming costs increases of $329,892 or 11.0%. In addition,
data communications system operation and maintenance expenses increased 11.2%
primarily due to a 64.8% increase, §47,707, in Customer Premise Wiring expenses, an
increase of 47.2%, $42,474, in Network Administration expense, a 63.7%, $38,223,
increase in Plant Operations Administration expense.

Total sales, customer services, and administrative expenses increased 32.2% over
2007. Cable television sales expenses increased by over $93,600, 50.0%, in 2008
primarily due to a 44.1%, $57,200, increase in sales expense such as commission
wages, a 55.4%, §$31,584, increase in product advertising expense, and a $205,716
increase in Other General & Administrative costs due to $185,83% in flood-ralated
operational expenses. Data communication sales expense and customer operations
expenses increased by 10.6% due to increased product advertising and customer
service wages and a $140,242 increase in Other General & Administrative expenses
due to %127,076 in flood-related operational expenses.

Interest income decreased 23.3% in 2008 due to lower interest rates in 2008.

Interest expense decreased 12.6% in 2008 primarily due to higher principal payments
on long-term debt resulting in less interest paid in 2008.

The other, net decrease of 12.6% in 2008 was primarily due to 72.8%, $70,357,
reduction in Contributicns in Aid of Construction revenues.

Capital Agsets and Debt Adminigtration

Net capital assets represent 59.6% of total assets for the Utility. Net capital
assets increased 5.2% from the prior year primarily due to digital set top box
equipment, ad insertion equipment, and wvideo on demand equipment purchases.
Additional detail on the change in capital assets can be found in Note 4.

The Utility’s total long-term debt at year end 2008, excluding the outstanding loan
with the Municipal Electric Utility, was $3,337,112 compared to 54,005,834 at year
end 2007. The Utility has an outstanding loan with the Municipal Electxic Utility
totaling $1,853,090 and $2,163,090 at December 31, 2008 and 2007 respectively.
Additional detail on the outstanding loan can be found in Note 5.



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Balance Sheets
Years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Total assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Assets 2008 2007
Current assets:
Cash and short-term investments (note 3} $ 2,400,306 $ 1,444,601
Cash - Restricted (note 2 and 3) 286,598 188,312
Investments - Restricted (note 2 and 3) 903,000 903,000
Recejvables:
Customer accounts, less allowance for doubtful
accounts of $20,100 in 2008 and $23,458 in 2007 1,282,691 1,158,098
Interest 19,621 40,174
Government grants - FEMA (note 11) 87,183 -
QOther 126,024 117,548
Material and supplies 456,390 486,459
Prepayments and other 80,997 89,768
Total current assets 5,653,390 4,427,961
Capital assets: (note 4}
Capital assets, in service 17,314,585 16,906,443
Less accumulated depreciation 9,423,856 9,107,410
7,820,733 7,799,033
Construction work in progress 446,402 127,420
Net capiltal assets 8,337,135 7,926,453
Deferred costs, net of amortization 4,625 11,235
Total noncurrent assets 8,341,760 7,937,688

$ 13,995,150

$ 12,365,649




MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Balance Sheets
Years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Liabilities 2008 2007
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 704,065 548,808
Accrued wages and vacation 138,806 104,805
Accerued interest 45,082 52,321
Other accrued liabilities 102,488 91,686
Current installments of note payable {(note 5) 310,000 31c, 000
Current instaliments of long-term debt (note 5) 690,000 676,000
Total current liabilities 1,990,541 1,777,620
Noncurrent liabilities: (note 5)
Other liabilities {(note 5 and 10) 131,640 98,664
Customer advances for construction 132,720 157,707
Total noncurrent liabilities 264,360 256,371
Long-term Debt (note 5)
Long-term note payable, less current installments (note 5) 1,543,090 1,853,080
Long-term debt, less current installments (note §) 2,647,112 3,335,894
4,150,202 5,188,984
Total liabilities and Long-term debt 6,445,103 7,222,875
Net Agsets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,146,933 1,757,469
Restricted -~ bond indenturss (note 2} 960,560 958,833
Unrestricted 3,442,614 2,426,372
Total net assets 7,550,047 5,142,874

Total liabilities and net assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$ 13,995,150

$ 12,365,649




MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

Operating revenues:
Cable system revenues
Data services revenue
Network access revenue
Local private line revenue
Cther Operating Income

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Plant specific and prograzmming
Deprecication
Plant nonspecific
Customer operations
Sales
Corporate operations (note 8)

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating revenues {expenses):
Interest income
Miscellaneous revenue (expense), net
Interest expense on long-term debt (note 5)
AFUDC {note 1}
Interest expense on affiliated note payable (note 5 and B8)

Total non-cperating revenues {(expenses)

Change in net assets

Net assets beginning of year

20608 2087
$ 6,115,836 $ 5,301,911
4,255,833 4,036,918
232,985 216,553
146,345 166,587

200,282

10,995,281 9,721,948
4,330,697 3,844,619
1,400,177 1,386,185
B19,865 734,773
550,39% 500,948
329,552 232,717
1,188,874 820,045
8,617,364 7,529,287
2,377,917 2,192,662
4,244 122,949
181,644 211,337
{197,15%) (225,426}
15,349 14,139
{64,622) (74,225)
25,456 48,774
2,407,373 2,241,436
5,142,674 2,901,238

Net assets end of year

5 7,550,047

§ 5,142,674

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IGOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Towa)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers $ 10,934,960 $ 9,848,818
Cash paid to suppliers (5,548,758) {5,361, 546)
Cash paid to employees (1,011,534} (834,121}
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,974,628 3,653,149
Cash flows from neoncapital financiag activities:
Payments on advance from affiliated utility (310, 000) (310, 000)
Interest paid Note Payable (69, 552) {79,070)
Net cash used in used in noncapital :
financing activities (379,552} {389,070}
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt (670,000} {635,000)
Interest payments on long-term debt {191, 640) (217,208)
Proceeds from customer advances for construction = 91, 000
Refunds of customer advances for construction {24,987) {40,293}
Acquisition, censtruction
and removal cost of capital assets {1,825,245) (1,709, 418)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 450 11,021
Reimbursement of utility construction costs 55,500 134,382
Net cash used in capital and related
financing activities {2,653, 882) {2,365,514)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities 1,188,4000 503,000
Purchase of investment securities (1,188,000) {903, 000)
Interest received 114,797 121,382
Net cash provided by investing activities 114,797 121,382
Net increase in cash and cash egquivalents 1,053,991 1,018,947
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,632,913 612, 966
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year {note 1) $§ 2,686,904 $ 1,632,913

See accompanying notes to financial statements. - 8 -



MUNICIPATL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,

(A Component Unit of the Qity of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Statements of Cash Flows,
Years ended December 31,

Reconciliaticon of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities

Cperating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation of capital assets

Other income (expense}, net

{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

{Increase) decrease

{Increase) decrease

(Increase} decrease

Increase (decrease)

Increase {decrease)

Increase (decrease)

Increase (decrease) in other noncurrent liablilities

in

in

in

in

in

in

intergovenrmental grants
materials and supplies
prepayments and other
accounts payable

accrued wages and vacation

cther accrued liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Continued
2008 and 2007

IOWA

2008 2007
s 2,377,917 $ 2,192,662
1,400,177 1,386,185
155,389 114,725
{133, 068) 958
{87,183) -
29,469 {157,675)
{1,229} (77,969)
155, 257 123,897
34,101 5,617
10,802 12,229
32,976 52,520
$ 3,974,628 $ 3,653,149




MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Zowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

(c)

Organization and Basis of Accounting

The Municipal Communications Utility (Utility)} of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa
is a separate and distinct city utility and is chartered under Iowa Code
Section 388. The Utility is a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls,
Towa. The Utility was formed to engage in the development and operation of a
breoadband communications system and the marketing of related services such as
cable television and high-speed data communications. The Utility's rates are
set by its governing board. The Utility follows the accounting practices
prescribed through the Federal Communications Commission for regulated
utilities and proprietary fund accounting for governmental entities undex
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Utility, as a regulated utility, follows the Code of Federal Regulations
Title 47 - Telecommunication, Chapter I - Federal Communications Commission.

In accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Accounting Standards Beoard
(GASB)} Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting Ffor Proprietary
Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,
the Utility applies only Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board opinions, and
Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or before November 30, 198%.

Cash and Investments

All investments held are certificates of deposit where cost approximates falr
value.

The Utility considers all highly liquid investments with maturity of three months
or less at purchase to be cash equivalents for purposes of the statements of
cash flows.

Inventories

Materials and supplies are valued at average cost. Inventories are recorded as
an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are consumed.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets are stated at original cost, including an allowance for funds used
during construction. The allowance for funds used during construction {AFUDC)
represents the estimated cost of funds used for construction purposes. AFUDC
was capitalized on utility construction at a rate of 4.92% in 2008 and 2007.
Depreciation of capital assets in service is calculated on a composite
straight-line method at rates based on estimated service lives and salvage
values of several classes of capital assets. The range of estimated service
lives for the classes of capital assets are as follows: infrastructure - 7 to
20 years and equipment - 20 years. The depreciation provision was eguivalent
to an overall composite rate of B.2% and 8.9% of depreciable assets for 2008
and 2007, respectively.

Replacements and betterments of capital assets are charged to capital assets.
Routine maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. AL the
time capital assets are retired, the original cost of the asset plus cost of
removal less salvage are charged to accumulated depreciation.



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{1) Summary of Significant Accounting Peolicies, Continued

(e) Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues include revenues resulting from the sale of products and

services. Operating expenses include expenses for plant specific and
programming, depreciation, plant nonspecific, customer operations, sales, and
corporate operations. Nonoperating revenues and expenses include those

derived from capital and related financing activities, noncapital financing
activities and investing activities.

Revenues are based on billing rates, which are applied to customers’' consumption
of communications services. The Utility records estimated unbilled revenue at
the end of accounting periods. Revenues earned, but not billed at December
31, 2008 and 2007, were $342,254 and $322,848, respectively.

{f} Deferred Costs

Debt discount, debt premium and debt issue costs are amortized over the life of
the debt using the effective interest method.

{(g) Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities in the
financial statements. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related
debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of any long-term debt used for acgquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of
government entitiles.

The Utility’'s policy is to first apply restricted rescurces when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets
are available.

(h) Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principals generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported
in the financial statements and accompanying notes. BActual results may differ
from those estimates.

{1} Budgetary Information

In accordance with the Code of Iowa, the Board of Trustees annually adopts a
budget on the cash basis following required public notice and hearing for
all funds. The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar
statutorily prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the
cash basis budget and appropriations lapse at year end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based on the total of all four utilities
as a whole. Due to a devastating June 2008 flood that significantly damaged
much utility property and related unexpected recovery expenditures, a budget
amendment identifying these additional expenditures was f£iled with the state
of Towa.

{4} Reclassifications

Reclassifications of priox year’s amounts have been made for comparability.

- 11 -
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Regstricted Assets

The composition of restricted assets as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

2008
Current Assets - Restricted Cash Investments Total
Bond Reserve $ - 5 403,000 § 403,000
Bond and Interest 71,161 - 71,161
Self Insured Medical and Dental 215,437 - 215,437
Improvement and Extension - 500,000 500,000
Total Current Assets - Restricted 286,598 903,000 1,189,598
Total restricted assets 5 286,598 § 503,000 $1,189,598
2007
Current Assets - Restricted Cash investments Total
Bond Regerve 5 - $ 403,000 S 403,000
Bond and Interest 71,803 - 71,803
Seilf Insured Medical and Dental 116,509 - 116,509
Improvement and Extension - 506,000 500,000
Total Current Assets - Restricted 5 188,312 & 903,000 $1,091,312
Total restricted assets $ 188,312 S 903,000 $1,091,312

The monies deposited into the various accounts have been invested in interest-bearing
securities as required by the bond resolution. Amounts deposited in the above
funds may only be used for the purposes as set forth in the bond resclution and as
a result are classified as restricted. Amounts deposited in the Self-Insured
Medical and Dental fund may only be used for medical and dental reserves and
expenses.

Cash on Hand, Peposits, and Investments

Cash on Hand. Cash on hand represents petty cash funds used for current operating
purposes. The carrying amount at December 31, 2008 was $60 and 2007 was $60.

Deposits. At December 31, 2008, the Utility's carrying amount of deposits, including
$903,000 of certificates of deposits, was $3,589,844. At December 31, 2007, the
Utility's carrying amount of deposits, including $903,000 of certificates of
deposits, was $2,535,853.

Investments. The utility is authorized by statute to invest public funds not
currently needed for operating expenses in obligations of the United State
government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other
evidences of deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the
Board of Trustees; prime eligible bankers acceptances; certain high rated
commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end
management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or
improvement certificates of a drainage district.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Utility had no Federal Agency Obligation
investments or maturities.

_12_
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Cash on Hand, Deposits, and Investments, Continued

Interest Rate Risk. The Utility’s investment policy 1limits the investments of
operating funds {funds expected te be expended in the current budget year or
within 15 months of receipt) in instruments that mature within 397 days. Funds

not identified as operating funds may be invested in instruments with maturities
longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and
use of the Utility.

Credit Risk. The Utility’s investment policy limits investments in commercial paper
and other corporate debt to the top two highest classifications. The Utility did
not invest in any commercial paper or other corporate debt during the year.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Utility’s investment policy does not allow for a
prime bankers’ acceptance or commercial paper and other corporate debt balances to
be greater than temn percent of its total deposits and investments. The policy also
limits the amount that can be invested in a single issue to five percent of its
total deposits and investments. The Utility held no such investments during the
year.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in
the event of a bank fallure, the Utility’'s deposits may not be returned to it. The
Utility's deposits are entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by the
State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of Towa. This
chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

tustodial Credit Risk - Investments. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the
event of the failure of the counterparty, the Utility will not be able to recover
the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession
of an outside party. The Utility had no custodial risk with regaxds to
investments, since all investments were held by the Utility or its agent in the
Utility’'s name.

A reconciliation of the Utility’s cash and cash equivalents and investments as shown
on the balance sheets follows:

2008 2007
Cash on hand 3 60 g 60
Carrying amount of deposits 3,589,844 2,535,853
Total $ 3,589,504 $ 2,535,913
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents S 2,400,306 $ 1,444,601
Restricted Cash 286,598 188,312
Restricted Investments 903,000 903,000
Total $ 3,589,904 $ 2,535,913

0f the unrestricted cash and investments Jlisted above, the Board of Trustees of
the Municipal Communications Utility has made no reserve fund designations.



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{4} Capital Assets

A summary of capital assets activity for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007

follows:
Additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfers Ending
2008 Balance in Cut Balance
Capital Assets, not being
depreciated:
Construction,
Work-in-progress 5 127,420 51,816,153 $1,497,171 s 466,402
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 127,420 1,816,153 1,497,171 466,402
Capital assets, ’
being depreciated:
Infrastructure 16,607,029 1,489,215 1,061,356 17,034,888
Equipment 289,414 7,956 27,669 279,701
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 16,906,443 1,497,171 1,089,025 17,314,589
Less accumulated depreciation 9,107,410 1,409,645 1,093,199 9,423,856
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 7,799,033 87,526 {4,174} 7,890,733
Capital assets, net S 7,826,453 $1,903,679 51,492,997 $ 8,337,135
additions Deletions
and and
Beginning Transfers Transfexrs Ending
2007 Balance In Oout Balance
Capital Assets, not being
depreciated:
Construction,
Work-in-progress [ 293,776 $ 1,686,333 $ 1,822,689 s 127,420
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 293,776 1,656,333 1,822,689 127,420
Capital assets,
being depreciated:
Infrastructure 15,090,638 1,788,037 271,646 16,607,029
Equipment 264,513 34,901 - 299,414
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 15,355,151 1,822,938 271,646 16,906,443
Less accumulated depreciation 7,980,114 1,388,942 271,646 9,107,410
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 7,375,037 423,596 - 7,799,033
Capital assets, neat $ 7,668,813 5 2,080,329 $ 1,822,689 § 7,926,453




MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

{(5) Noncurrent Liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities activity for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was as

follows:
Amounts
Due
Within
Beginning Ending One
2008 Balance Additions Reducticns Balance Year
General obligation bonds:
Series 1998 $ 405,000 s - § 40,000 $ 365,000 $ 40,000
Series 19%9 385,000 - 50,000 335,000 50,000
Series 2002 915,000 - 295,000 620,000 305,000
Note payable - Municipal
Electric Utility 2,163,030 - 310,000 1,853,090 310,0G00
Series 1999 capital
loan noctes 2,305,000 - 285,000 2,020,000 295,000
Unamortized discount {2,013} - (733) {1,280) -
Unamortized premium (2,093) - (485} {1,608) -
6,168,984 - 978,782 5,190,202 41,000,000
Current instaliments of
long-term debt {980,000} (20, 000) - {1,800, 000)
Long-term debt, less
current installments 5,188,984 {20,000} 978,782 4,190,202
Other noncurrent
liabilities:
Customer advances for
construction 157,707 - 24,987 132,720
Other liabilities 98,664 58, 064 25,088 131,640
Noncurrent liabilities 256,371 58,064 50,075 264,360

Total noncurrent
liabilities §5,445, 355 5 38,064 51,028,857 84,454,562




MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(& Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007
{(5) Noncurrent Liabilities, Continued
Amounts
Due
Within
Beginning Ending One
2007 Balance Additions Reductions Balance Year
General cobligation bonds:
Series 1998 S 445,000 s 3 ac, 000 $ 405,000 $ 40,000
Series 1%9% 430,000 45,000 385, 000 50,000
Series 2002 1,195,000 28¢, 000 915, 000 295,000
Note payable - Municipal
Electric Utility 2,473,090 310,000 2,163,090 310,000
Series 1999 capital
loan notes 2,575,000 270,000 2,305,000 285, 000
inamortized discount {2,879) {8&8) (2,013) ~
Unamortized premium (1,556) 137 (2,093) -
7,113,255 944,271 6,168,984 $980, 000
Current installments of
long-term debt {(94%,000) {35, 000) - (280,000}
Long-term debt, less
current installments 6,168,255 {35,000) 944,271 5,188,984
Other noncurrent
liabilities:
Customer advances for
construction 164,939 66,331 73,563 157,707
Other liabilities 46,144 77,651 25,131 98,664
Noncurrent liabilities 211,083 143,982 08,694 256,371
Total noncurrent
liabilities $6,379,338 $ 108,982 $1,042,8865 $5,445,355
All general obligation {(G.0.) bonds have been issued by the City on behalf of the

Utility. The

{G.0.) bonds require annual principal payments,

due December 1,

and

semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1. Interest rates throughout

the term of the bonds are in a range between 2.5% and 5.50%.

service obligations over the remaining term cf the bonds are as follows:

Series 19%B Communications

General Obligation Bonds

Series 1999 Communications

General Cbligation Bonds

Series 2002 Communications
General Obligation Bonds

The total debt

December 1 4.30%-4.90% December 1 4.35%-5.15% December 1 2.50%-3.60%
Principal interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
Year Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
2008 $ 40,000 $ 17,600 §& 50,000 $ 1,810 3 305,000 $ 21,710
2010 45,000 15,720 50,000 14,385 © 315,080 11,340
2011 90,000 13,583 55,000 11,935 - -
2012 95,0400 9,262 55,000 g,185 - -
2013 95,080 4,655 60,000 6,408 - -
2014 65,000 3,347 - -
% 365,000 $ 60,820 S 335,000 & 62,070 $ 620,000 $ 33,050

The Series 1999 capital loan notes regquire annual principal payments, due December 1,

and sgemiannual interest payments,
throughout the term of the notes are in a range between 4.6% and 5.5%.

due June 1 and December 1.

ig secured by the future net revenues of the Utility.

Iinterest rates
The debt
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{3 Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 20607

Noncurrent Liabilities, Continued

The

The

The

total debt service obligations over the remaining term of the notes are as
follows:

Series 1999
Communications
Capital Loan Notes

December 1 4.60%-5.50%

Principal Interest
Year Amount Amount
2009 s 295,000 $ 107,813
2010 310,000 92,768
2011 325,000 76,648
2012 345,000 59,422
2013 365,000 40,792
2014 380,000 20,900

s 2,020,000 $ 398,343

bond resolution provides certain covenants relating to the collection,
segregation and distribution of revenues from customers; places certain
restrictions on future borrowing and leasing or disposition of assets; and
requires that minimum insurance coverage be maintained.

Board of Trustees of the Municipal Electric Utility authorized a loan to be
extended to the Utility under Resolutions No. 2759, 2840, 2939, 2994, and 3086.
the December 31, 2008 and 2007 outstanding balances on this loan were $1,478,090
and $1,663,090, respectively, bearing interest at 3.1%. The Board of Trustees of
the Municipal Electrie Utility approved a loan be extended to the Utility under
Resolution No. 3487. The December 31, 2008 and 2007 outstanding balances on this
loan were $375,000 and $500,000, respectively, bearing interest at 3.1%.
Semiannual debt service payments are required on January 1 and July 1. Total debt
service reguirements are as follows:

Notes Payable
Electric Utility

Principal Interest
Year Amount Amount

2009 $ 310,000 $ 59,764
2010 310,000 50,240
2011 310,000 40,630
2012 185,000 31,0589
2013 185,000 25,247
2014-2016 553,090 43,840

$1,853,090 $ 250,780

{6) Pension and Retirement Benefits

The Utility contributes to the Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS), a

cost-sharing multiple-emplioyer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
State of Iowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits, which are
establiished by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing IPERS,
P.0O. Box 9117, Des Moines, Iowa 50306-3117.

- 17 -



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, ICWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

(6) Pension and Retirement Benefits, Continued

{7

(8)

(9)

(2]

Plan members were required to contribute 3.90% of thelr annual covered salary and the
Utility is required to contribute 6.05% of annual covered payroll through June 30,
2008. Beginning July 1, 2008 plan members are required to contribute 4.10% of
their annual covered salary and the Utility is required to contribute 6.35% of
annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements are established by State
statute. The Utility’'s contributions for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007,
and 2006, were $100,992; $83,095; and $77,117, respectively, egual to the regquired
contributicons for each year.

In accordance with the Code of Iowa Section 5093, the Utility allows retiring
employees to continue health insurance coverage on the self-funded health
insurance plan at the employees’ own cost until eligible for Medicare benefits.
Qualifying employees with 20 years of Utility service, 88 IPERS points and having
reached 55 vyears of age may convert their accrued sick leave value into paid
health insurance premiums upon retirement. This benefit will be phased out by
June 30, 2010. In 2008 the benefit was reduced to 75% of accrued sick leave and
in 2009 to June 30, 2010 it will be reduced to 50% and zero thereafter. The
Utility recognized liability of §6,285 and $5,070; respectively, for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Income Tax Status

The Utility is exempt from federal and state income taxes under the applicable tax
codes.

Related Party Transactions

The Utility provides communications service teo the City. Operating revenues from the
service provided amounted to 566,260 and $70,459 in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Qutstanding loan balances from the Municipal Electric Utility are §$3,853,090, and
$2,163,090 as of December 31, 2008, and 2007, respectively. Interest accrues on
the loan at 3.1%, and ig paid semi-annually during January and July. Annual
principal payments continue through 2016 ({(see note 5). Accrued interest payable
was 531,421 and $36,351 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Interest
expense for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $64,622 and $74,225
respectively.

The Utility pays the Municipal Electric Utility, the Municipal Gas Utility and the
Municipal Water Utility a management fee for administration, finance, human
resources and legal services as part of the program to equitably allocate
Communications costs. For the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Utility
recorded a management fee to the Municipal Electric Utility of $69,863; the
Municipal Gas Utility of $21,424; and the Municipal Water Utility of $1,863.

See note 5 for description of debt with the City. The interest paid to the City was
569,579 and %81,916 for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
The accrued interest related to this debt was $4,677 and $5,798 at December 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Risk Management

The Cedar Falls Municipal ERElectric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities
(Utilities) are exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees;
and natural disasters. The Utilities purchase commercial insurance for claims
related to these risks.

Risk Management, Continued
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

The Utilities maintain a risk management account for risks related to their self-
funded medical insurance plan. The risk management account provides employee
health insurance coverage for the Utilities' employees and participating retirees.
The Utilities self-fund the first $60,000 of claims per individual and have
insurance for claims above this amount. In addition, the Utilities have aggregate
stop loss coverage for the 2008 plan year for aggregate claims exceeding $2.1
million.

Liabilities of the risk management account are reported when it is probable that a
loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
Liakilities include an estimated amount for claims that have been incurred but not
reported {(IBNR) which represent estimates of the eventual loss on claims arising
prior to year-end. Changes in the balances of the Utilities liabilities during
the past two years are as follows:

2008 2007
Unpaid c¢laims and IBNR, beginning of year $ 185,000 5 300,000
Current year costs including IBNR 1,544,287 1,424,435
Claims paid {1,435,687) {1,539,435)
Unpaid claims and IBNR, end of year $ 293,600 $ 185,000

The Utility has recorded $38,168 and $22,200 in accounts payable for its share of
these unpaid claims at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Utilities are a member of the Jowa Municipalities Workers' Compensation
Association (the Association), which was established to provide members a group
self-insurance program for their workers' compensation liabilities. Approximately
470 governmental entities participate in the Association. A board of trustees
consisting of seven members is elected by the members participating in the
Association to manage and conduct the business and affailrs of the Associatiom.

The following table sets forth summarized financial data of the Association as of and
for its year ended June 30, 2008.

Cash and cash equivalents and investments $41,832,212
Receivables 1,587,842
Other assets 555,181

Total assets $43,975,2358
Total liabilities $20,132,854
Total equity 23,842,381

Total liabilities and equity $43,975,235
Total revenues s 8;727,540
Total expenses 3,056,377

Distribution to members -

Net increase in equity $§ 5,671,163

There have been no instances where the amount of settlement has exceeded avallable
coverage in the past three years. There has been no significant reduction in
insurance coverage from coverage in the prior year.

{10) Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)




MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

Plan Description

The Cedar Falls Utilities administers a single-employer defined benefit medical
health care plan (The Plan) for all four utilities. The plan provides self-insured
medical, vision, and prescription drug coverage, and to all active and retired
employees and their eligible dependents. Eligible retirees receive health care
coverage through the same plans that are available for active employeses. To be
eligible for these benefits employees at their retirement date must be a minimum
of 55 years old, have been employed for the preceding four years, and be enrolled
in the plan. Plan contributions are required from retirees based on an amount
equal to the full cost of active members. These medical benefits terminate upon
attaining Medicare eligibility. In addition, the Plan provides a £5,000 in life
insurance benefits to all retirees who elect this coverage and agree to pay a
contribution for this coverage.

Funding Policy

The Utility, with assistance from their third-party administrators, establishes and
amends contribution reguirements foxr both active and retiree members on an annual
basis. The current funding policy is to pay health claims as they occur and the
required contribution is based on pay-as-you-go financing. For the year ending
December 31, 2008, the Utility contributed $140,936 and retirees receiving
benefits contributed $153,307 through their required contributions.

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligations

The Plan’s annual OPEBR expense iz calculated based on the annuwal regquired
contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance
with the parameters of General Accounting Standards Board (GASE) Statement No
45. This standard was implemented in 2008. The ARC represents a level of funding
that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period
not to exceed thirty vears. The following schedule shows the components of the
annual OPER expense for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and
changes in the net OPEB obligation:

2008

Annual required contribution $299,000
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation -
Adjustment to annual required

contribution 9,572
Annual OPEB expense 289,428
Contributions and payments made (12,371)
Increase in net OPEB obligation $301,799
Net OPEBR obligation, December 31, 2007 -
Net OPERBR obligation, December 31, 2008 $301,799

The Communications Utility's share of the December 31, 2008 Net OPEB obligation is
$21,501.

(10) Other Post Employment Benefits (COPEB), Continued
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MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
(A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements

December 31, 2008 and 2007

The Utility’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEE cost contributed to the
plan, and pet OPEB obligation for the year ended December 31, 2008:

Percentage
Of Annual
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
December 31, 2008 5289,428 -4.27% 5301,79%

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of January 1, 2007, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial
accrued liability (BAL) and unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) for
benefits was $3,436,000. The Plan is unfunded since there are no assets and
retiree benefits are paid annually on a cash basis. Because The Plan is unfunded,
the AAL and UBAL are equal. The covered payroll is the yearly payroll of actives
covered by the plan and was $11,152,424, in 2008 and the ratioc of the UAAL to the
covered payroll was 30.8%.

Actuarial valuations of an ongeing plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the
healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan
and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future. There are no plans to fund The Plan at this time.

Proiections of bemefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive
plan {(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the
types of benefits provided at the time of each wvaluation and the historical
pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and the plan members to
that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that
are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial wvalue of assets, consistent with the Ilong-term
perspective of the calculations.

Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial valuation date: January 1, 2007
Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit
Amortization wmethod: Level Percentage 0Of Projected Payroll
Remaining amortization period: 30 years
Actuarial assumptions:
Discount Rate 5.0%
Healthcare Trend Rate 11.0% declining .5% annually to 6%
Projected Salary Increases 4.0%

(11} Flocd Event



MUNICIPAL COMMUNICATIONS UTILITY OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
{A Component Unit of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa)

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2008 and 2007

On June 10, 2008, Cedar Falls Utilities was hit by a major flood event that destroyed
or severely damaged many Utility assets. The flood destroyed the first floor of
the administrative building, office furnishings and equipment, and tools. The
Utilities began immediate clean up and work with the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) for reconstruction, repair and remediation of Utility facilities.
The Utility continues working with FEMA submitting costs related to recovery,
repair and remediation and is still in the process of repairing and replacing

assets lost 1in the flood. As of December 31, 2008, Utility administrative
facilities and generation facilities were still mnot completely repaired and
operational. As of December 31, 2008, the Communications Utility has spent

$312,915 in operational expense for flood recovery and 54,141 in asset repair and
replacement. The Utility has recognized $200,279% in Other Operating Revenues for
FEMA reimbursement expected for operational losses. As of December 31, 2008, the
Utility recognized a receivable of $87,163 for FEMA flood disaster reimbursement.
The Utillity has received $228,773 in FEMA reimbursements between January 1, 2009
and March 31, 2009 with the remainder due upon completion of the review by the
State of Towa.

{12) Commitments and Contingencies

As of December 31, 2008, the Utility was involved in several ceonstruction projects
with an estimated cost to compliete of approximately 5$446,000 including
approximately $4,000 in flood-related capital projects.

(13) Subsequent Events

Effective January 1, 2009, the Board of Trustees approved a rate increase in premium
movie channel packages of approximately 16% and Digital Signature add-on package
of 2.8% for customers taking these services.
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE ANP OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Communications Utiliey

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Communications Utility of
Cedar Falls, Iowa (the Utility), as of and for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, and have
issued our report thereon dated May 4, 2009. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utility’s intemal controi over financial reporting
as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness of the Utility’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Utility’s internal control over financial reporting,

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of
control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or
report financial data reliably in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America such that there is more than a remote likelthood that a misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s
internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, We did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Utility’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we perforrned tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the Utility’s operations for the year ended
December 31, 2008, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our
audit of the financial statements of the Utility and are reported in Part II of the Schedule of Findings,
which has been submitted under separate cover. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all
transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments
involving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those
statutes.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Utility in a separate letter dated May 4,
2009,

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and customers of the Utility and other parties to whom the Utility may report. This report is
not intended to be and should not be nsed by anyone other than these specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of the
Utility during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the above
matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

éfv,&wy L7

Dubuque, Iowa
May 4, 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Electric Utility of Cedar Falls, lowa (the
Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4, 2009, on our
consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 5 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

@M L7’

May 4, 2009
Dubugque, lowa
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Gas Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Gas Utility of Cedar Falls, lowa (the
Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4, 2009, on our
consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 4 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

@M L7’

May 4, 2009
Dubugque, lowa
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Water Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Water Utility of Cedar Falls, lowa (the
Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related
statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4, 2009, on our
consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 4 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

@M L7’

May 4, 2009
Dubugque, lowa
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Communications Utility

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of the Municipal Communications Utility of Cedar Falls,
lowa (the Utility) (a component unit of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and
the related statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Utility’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Utility as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its financial position and its cash
flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 4, 2009, on our
consideration of the Utility’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1 through 4 is not a required part of the basic financial
statements but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

@M L7’

May 4, 2009
Dubugque, lowa
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO

ITS MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Municipal Utilities
Cedar Falls, lowa

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of Cedar Falls Municipal Utilities with the types of compliance requirements
described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2008. The Utilities’ major federal
program is identified in the summary of the independent auditor’s results section of the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the management of Cedar
Falls Municipal Utilities. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Utilities’ compliance based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Utilities’ compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Utilities” compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, Cedar Falls Municipal Utilities complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of Cedar Falls Municipal Utilities is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Utilities” internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order
to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Utilities” internal control over compliance.

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES. 1
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A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote
likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Municipal Utilities as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated May 4, 2009. Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Utilities’ basic
financial statements. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees,
and customers of Cedar Falls Municipal Utilities and other parties to whom Cedar Falls Municipal Utilities
may report, including federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

QZ@M L7

Dubuque, lowa
May 4, 2009



CEDAR FALLS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Agency or
Pass-through Program
Grantor/Program CFDA Number Number Expenditures
Indirect:
Department of Homeland Security:
lowa Department of Public Defense:
Disaster Grants — Public Assistance
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 97.036 013-000CA-00 $8,515,230

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 3



CEDAR FALLS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Cedar
Falls Municipal Utilities and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information on this schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ
from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.



CEDAR FALLS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Part I: Summary of the Independent Auditor’s Results:

(@)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(€)
(f)

(9)

(h)
(i)

Unqualified opinions were issued on the financial statements.

No material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting were noted.

The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial statements.

No material weaknesses in internal control over the major program was noted.

An ungualified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable to the major program.

The audit disclosed no audit findings which were required to be reported in accordance with Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section .510(a).

The major program was CFDA Number 97.036 — Disaster Grants — Public Assistance (Presidentially
Declared Disasters)

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.

Cedar Falls Municipal Utilities did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

Part I1: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting:

I1-A-08 Certified Budget — Disbursements during the year ended December 31, 2008, did not exceed the

amounts budgeted.

11-B-08 Questionable Expenditures — We noted no expenditures that we believe may fail to meet the

requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General’s opinion dated April 25, 1979.

I1-C-08 Travel Expense — No expenditures of the Utility’s money for travel expenses of spouses of Utility

officials or employees were noted.

I1-D-08 Business Transactions — No business transactions between the Utilities and Utility officials or

employees were noted.

II-E-08 Bond Coverage — Surety bond coverage of Utility officials and employees is in accordance with

statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually to insure that the
coverage is adequate for current operations.

II-F-08 Board Minutes — No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the

Board minutes but were not.

11-G-08 Deposits and Investments — No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and investment

provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of lowa and the Utilities’ investment policy were
noted.
5



CEDAR FALLS MUNICIPAL UTILITIES

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Part 11: Other Findings Related to Required Statutory Reporting: (continued)

I1-H-08 Revenue Bonds — We noted no instances of non-compliance with the provisions of the Utilities’
revenue bond resolutions.

I1-1-08  Telecommunication Services — No instances of non-compliance with Chapter 388.10 of the lowa
Code were noted.
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities

We have audited the financial statements of Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and
Communications Utilities (the Utilities) for the year ended December 31, 2008, and have issued our report
thereon dated May 4, 2009. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following information
related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U.S Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and
Government Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated October 24, 2008, our responsibility, as described by professional
standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your
oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Planned Scope of Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to you in our
engagement letter and our conversation about planning matters with Roger Kueter on April 1, 20009.

Significant Audit Findings
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the appropriateness of accounting policies and
their application. The significant accounting policies used by Cedar Falls Utilities are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during 2008. We noted no transactions entered into by the Utility during the year for which there is a
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the
financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

Management’s estimate of the unbilled receivables is based on a calculation of billing dates in
January 2008. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the unbilled
receivables in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.
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To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities

Page 2

Management’s estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on a calculation of
average write offs for the four previous years. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used
to develop the allowance for doubtful accounts in determining that it is reasonable in relation to
the financial statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the incurred but not reported claims is based on a calculation of
estimated unpaid claims. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the
incurred but not reported claims in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Management’s estimate of the accrued severance and retirement insurance benefit is based on a
calculation of estimated payout of sick leave and estimated probability of severance pay. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the accrued severance and retirement
insurance benefit in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken
as a whole.

Management's estimate of intergovernmental receivables from FEMA is based on expenditures
incurred for flood related items as of year end which are reimbursed through FEMA. We
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the receivables in determining that
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The material
misstatements detected as a result of auditing procedures were corrected by management and are attached on the

supporting schedule.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to
the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during

the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation

letter dated May 4, 2009.



To the Board of Trustees
Cedar Falls Utilities — Municipal Electric, Gas, Water, and Communications Utilities
Page 3

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to the Company’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check
with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such
consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Utilities’ auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our
retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of board of directors and management of Cedar Falls Utilities and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

@M L7

Dubugue, lowa
May 4, 2009



CEDAR FALLS UTILITIES
DECEMBER 31, 2008
OTHER COMMENTS

Communications Utility Allocations

The process of allocating administrative, accounting, and customer service salaries and building cost to the
Communication Utility was implemented at least five years ago. We recommend that the process be reviewed and
adjusted for any changes in operations.

New Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued four statements not yet implemented by
Cedar Falls Utilities. The statements, which might impact the Utilities, are as follows:

Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Intangible Assets, issued June 2007 will be effective
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010. This statement requires that all intangible assets not specifically
excluded by its scope be classified as capital assets.

Statement No. 52, Land and Other Real Estate Held as Investments by Endowments, issued November 2007, will
be effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2009. This statement establishes standards of accounting and
financial reporting for land and other real estate held as investments by endowments. Land and other real estate
held as investments by endowments should be reported at fair value at that reporting date.

Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, issued June 2008, will be
effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2010. This Statement addresses the recognition, measurement,
and disclosure of information regarding derivative instruments.

Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, issued March 2009, will be
effective for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2011. This statement establishes new standards for fund balance
classifications based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon
the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.

The Utilities” management is in the process of determining the effect these statements will have, if any, on the
Utilities’ financial statements.



